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nologies worldwide. In 2002, SpectraFlood services were

maximize hydrocarbon recovery from their producing

performed in three separate projects in Mexico. New
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history. Core continued to execute this three-fold strategy:
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Core’s new SpectraFlood™ technology was successfully
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introduced in 2002 and is one of the services highlighted

Data Solutions (ADS) in July 2002. ADS provides state-

in the theme portion of this Annual Report. This new tracer

of-the-art depth-imaging technology that was integral to

service enables petroleum companies to monitor produc-

the success of Reservoir Management operations last

tion trends in fields as they are being flooded to drive

year. The technology was quickly made available through
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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

CHAIRMAN’S

In 2002 Core Laboratories continued to evolve as the

capital expenditure program, fund the $8,000,000

most technologically advanced, uniquely positioned provider

cash acquisition of Advanced Data Solutions, and buy

of petroleum reservoir optimization technologies available

back over 2,000,000 shares of Core Lab stock through

to the worldwide oil and natural gas industry. Many of our

April 2003.

proprietary and patented Reservoir Description, Production

Core Laboratories’ ability to generate signifi-

Enhancement, and Reservoir Management technologies

cant free cash flow in a challenging year enabled the

are being used to maximize daily hydrocarbon production

Company to further strengthen our balance sheet. This

and ultimate recovery from the hundreds of producing

positions Core to be able to capitalize on growth oppor-

fields around the world. This maximizes cash flow for our

tunities in 2003. We are dedicated to the continued

clients, enabling them to reinvest in other oilfield projects

execution of our business strategy of (1) developing new

for which Core can furnish additional services.

technologies, (2) leveraging new services via our global

As our clients’ producing assets age and decline
in their productive capacity, Core Laboratories will play

network, and (3) acquiring value-added technologies to
build a better company and create shareholder value.

an important role in enhancing oil and gas recovery and
extending the productive lives of our clients’ fields. We

Reservoir Description Services

discuss some of the enhanced recovery technologies

For the third consecutive year, Core Laboratories’ per-

we are using in the theme portion of this year’s

formance was led by our Reservoir Description opera-

Annual Report.

tions. They generated all-time record annual revenues of

By providing unique solutions to optimize reservoir

$220,282,000 in 2002. Their oilfield development and

performance, Core was able to post full-year 2002

crude-oil characterization projects enjoy more international

revenues of $364,748,000, the second highest in

exposure than services offered by our other operations.

Company history. Lower oil company investment and

Many of the technologies and services provided by

spending for most of 2002 affected our North American

our Reservoir Description operations are proprietary and

operations, but international projects continued to

patented. Our services describe the porous rocks and

receive funding. Core’s operations earned $0.23 per

reservoir fluids contained in the world’s oil and natural

diluted share for the year, reflecting the significant

gas fields. Our technologies are used to determine the

decline in North American drilling and the effects of busi-

volumes of hydrocarbons contained in a reservoir and

ness disruptions in Venezuela. Cash flow from operations

the most economical plan for producing them.

remained strong and reached almost $41,000,000. This
cash was used to reduce debt, fund our $19,000,000

We also provide reservoir fluid analyses and inspection services to determine the quality and quantity of

crude oils, natural gases, and their derivatives. This
information can be used to determine the value of the
petroleum in an entire field – or in individual tanker
shipments to and from refineries.
Reservoir Description services continued to play
important roles in some of the world’s most interesting
oilfield developments. Several projects continued in
Russia and Kazakhstan as remediation of older fields
has led to dramatic increases in crude oil production
from the Former Soviet Union (FSU). Large combination
waterflood and miscible gas-flood projects in the Middle
East relied on Core technologies to enhance oil recoveries using techniques that are highlighted in this year’s
Annual Report. In one field flood project, Core’s patented
Saturation Monitoring by Attenuation of X-rays (SMAX®)
technology helped to maximize hydrocarbon production
while minimizing associated water production.

Production Enhancement Services
Core’s Production Enhancement services, leveraged
mainly to the North American natural gas market,
continued to develop new technologies and services in
2002. In addition, Production Enhancement operations
accomplished further penetration into the expanding
markets in China and Mexico, which were highlighted
in last year’s Annual Report.
Several large orders for Core’s proprietary perforating charges and gun systems were shipped to
clients in China. These systems, designed to significantly reduce reservoir formation damage that occurs
during perforating, will help our clients increase the
flow of oil to meet the rapidly increasing demand for
petroleum products in China.

David M. Demshur
Chairman of the Board, President
and Chief Executive Officer

In Mexico, Core provided our new SpectraFlood

Reservoir Management operations continued

services to monitor the sweep efficiency of an ongoing

to provide technologies to enhance production from

waterflood in one of the country’s largest oilfields. Also

heavy-oil and oil-sand fields. Core’s FibreNet™ tech-

in demand is technology to boost Mexico’s natural gas

nology provided real-time temperature profiles of several

production; and Core relocated our country headquarters

Steam-Assisted Gravity Drainage (SAGD) projects in

to Villahermosa, a central location from which we can

Canada, and our In-Reservoir Seismic™ services were

provide faster response and better service to that

used to monitor the steam plumes that drive heavy

growing market.

oils to producing wellbores.

Reservoir Management Services

Value-added technologies

Refocusing Reservoir Management operations on the use

drive our growth

of proprietary technologies for integrated, multidisciplinary

Core Laboratories enters 2003 well positioned to add

reservoir solutions projects produced a year of progress.

value to our clients’ producing assets. Our proprietary

These projects combine technologies from Core’s

and patented reservoir-optimizing technologies are

Reservoir Description and Production Enhancement seg-

needed more now than ever, as fields age and their pro-

ments with engineering and geophysical technologies to

duction declines. The combination of our new technologies

solve difficult production problems that occur in complex

and services and the world’s need for greater quantities

fields. As oil companies have downsized their technical

of oil and gas bodes well for the future growth prospects

staffs over the past several years, Core has repositioned

of Core Laboratories.

to perform more of these value-added studies for
our clients.
In one study, Core was able to use Reservoir
Description data to recommend different drilling and
completion techniques. Core’s recommendations reduced
severe formation damage that was being caused when
water in the drilling fluid interacted with water-sensitive
clays in the formation. Our study team also specified
proprietary Production Enhancement technologies that
resulted in a more effective perforation and stimulation
program. The new program resulted in better reservoirto-wellbore communications and enabled maximum
hydrocarbon flow. In total, Core’s study produced over
$50 million in value for our client, and we have been
rewarded with another large study.

OPTIMIZING
RESERVOIR PERFORMANCE

OPTIMIZING

Core Laboratories plays a

1980s

2000s

critical role in secondary and
enhanced oil recovery projects
Currently there are over 4,000 commercial oilfields
around the world that are producing approximately
77,000,000 barrels of oil each and every day. This daily
production roughly equals the world’s daily consumption,
with the United States using almost 20,000,000 barrels
of oil per day.
When the fields age, daily production decreases as
the natural reservoir pressures decrease. On average,
using today’s primary and secondary oil recovery technologies, these fields will produce only 40% of their

Primary and
Secondary Recovery

Enhanced
Oil Recovery

Not Economically
Recoverable

Technological advances over the last 20 years have enabled our
industry to recover over 20% more oil during primary and secondary recovery operations.

reserves, leaving 60% of the crude oil in the ground.
This 40% average recovery factor is up from an estimated 33% just 20 years ago. Technological advances,
many spearheaded by Core Laboratories, have helped
the world’s petroleum industry produce more incremental barrels from their fields.
As finding and developing costs have risen significantly over the past two decades, incremental barrels
have become the most economical to produce.
Almost all of the world’s commercial oilfields consist
of porous rocks that contain crude oil, natural gases,
and water under extremely high pressure. It is a complex
relationship in which the three reservoir fluids are contained in the pore spaces of the reservoir rock, and no
two reservoirs and their fluids are alike.

Sand

Oil

Gas

Water

Three fluid phases – oil, gas, and water – cohabit the pore
spaces of reservoir rock. This stylized illustration would
represent a 125x magnification.

Core’s Reservoir Description operations describe

Core’s proprietary and patented Saturation Monitoring

these reservoir systems all over the world. Our data are

by Attenuation of X-rays (SMAX) technology is used to

used to determine flow rates and initial hydrocarbon

analyze the way fluids move through the reservoir during

recovery rates from a well and the entire field.

a field flood.

As reservoirs produce their fluids, natural reservoir

The three reservoir fluids – oil, natural gas, and

pressure declines. Declining pressure leads to lower

water – will move at different speeds through the

and lower production of hydrocarbons to the surface.

reservoir because each will interact differently with the

To raise production levels, an oil company will initiate

reservoir rocks. Information provided by Core is used to

artificial lift using pumps at the surface or in the well,

design a field flood in which the oil moves most quickly

or the company may start to inject fluid into the reser-

to the producing wells, followed by the natural gas. If all

voir to boost pressure.

goes well, the uneconomical reservoir water will follow

The injection of water into a producing reservoir

much later.

is the beginning of secondary recovery. The most com-

Core recently introduced SpectraFlood technology,

monly injected fluid is water that has been treated to

which can be used to determine the effectiveness and

flow easily through the reservoir rock and push oil to

efficiency of waterflood projects. SpectraFlood tracers,

producing wells.

a family of more than 20 elements, are used to track

Core Laboratories’ Reservoir Description services

the flow paths of injected water from the injection well

characterize reservoir rock and fluid properties to provide

to the producing well. Armed with that information, oil

information that is essential to determining the most

companies selectively control injection rates to ensure

effective and efficient methods of flooding a reservoir.

that water does not break through to the producing well

Water

Oil

X-rays

Core’s SMAX X-ray technology enables oil companies to plan field floods that capitalize on the distinctly different ways oil, gas, and
water interact with reservoir rock.

In a waterflood project, treated water is pumped into the
reservoir through injection wells, and it sweeps additional
oil to producing wells in the field.

SpectraFlood tracers can track the flow paths of
injected water as it moves from an injection
well to a producing well.

instead of sweeping the maximum quantity of oil to it.

Core has also been involved in one of the world’s

SpectraFlood tracers are currently being used in a giant

largest and most successful nitrogen flood projects.

field in Mexico to ensure that maximum sweep efficiency

Nitrogen, an inert gas that makes up 78% of the air

is achieved in the reservoir.

we breath, is being injected into the huge Canterall field

Another common enhanced oil recovery (EOR) tech-

offshore Mexico

nique is injection of gas into a reservoir to maintain high

to boost produc-

reservoir pressure. The injected gas keeps oil flowing

tion. Production from

to the surface; and more importantly, it “scrubs” or

the Canterall field has been

releases additional oil from the reservoir.

increased several hundred thou-

In West Texas, many fields are flooded with carbon
dioxide (CO2), which is a particularly effective scrubber
gas. CO2 is piped into

sand barrels per day to its current daily
production of well over 1,500,000 barrels.
One of the most effective enhanced oil recovery

the West Texas

techniques is injection of a miscible gas into a producing

area from naturally

field. Many times this gas was originally produced from

occurring CO2 fields

the field itself along with the oil, and it is reinjected into

found in the Rocky

the reservoir to maintain pressure and to scrub addi-

Mountain area. The injected CO2

tional oil from the reservoir rock. The reinjected gas

gas pushes oil to producing wells; and because of its

forms a miscible fluid with the oil, which means that

chemical properties, it liberates more oil than injected

the gas and oil dissolve into each other, thereby freeing

water is able to. However, CO2 is more expensive than

more oil from the reservoir.

water, and oil companies always take such costs into
account when determining their return on investment
in an EOR project.
Core Laboratories provides data to the oil company
to help determine whether a CO2 or a waterflood project
would yield the best return on the client’s investment.
We simulate both types of floods in the laboratory with
actual reservoir rock and fluid samples at reservoir
pressure and temperature conditions to determine which
type of flood would yield the highest return versus cost.

In West Texas, many fields are flooded with CO2.
Although more expensive to use than water,
CO2 is a more efficient oil-sweeping agent.

Core has been involved in a nitrogen flood
project offshore Mexico that increased
field production by several hundred
thousand barrels per day.

Core has recently been involved in miscible gas

To ensure that the entire production zone is effec-

flood projects in the United Arab Emirates. We con-

tively being treated by the steam injection, Core has

ducted reservoir

developed FibreNet technology. This technology uses a

rock and, more impor-

continuous fiber-optic strand in the producing well as

tantly, reservoir fluid studies

a thermometer. The temperature profile of the entire

to determine the miscibility of

productive interval is monitored in real time to ensure

the produced gas and crude oil

that steam is treating the entire zone. If cold zones or

from the reservoir. We determined

under-treated zones are discovered, the steam injection

that reinjecting the gas would free

points and the rates of steam injection can be changed

additional oil from a giant oil field, and production

to maximize the effectiveness of the treatment.

has been increased significantly.
Using steam to decrease the viscosity of heavier

Core has also used its proprietary In-Reservoir
Seismic technology to image the location and movement

oils and drive them to a producing wellbore has proved

of the steam plume. This ensures that the steam flood

an effective EOR technique. Core has played an impor-

front is sweeping the maximum quantities of heavy oil

tant role in developing technologies to maximize the

to the producing wellbore.

efficiencies of steam floods.
Steam injection is boosting heavy oil production in

Core Laboratories is the

Kern County, California; and especially, it is being used

Reservoir Optimization

in Steam-Assisted Gravity

Company™

Drainage (SAGD) proj-

Core has been one of the most innovative companies

ects in northern

in developing new technologies to optimize primary,

Alberta. Core has

secondary, and enhanced oil recovery. The incremental

introduced new

barrels of oil delivered by these technologies are the most

temperature-

economical production for our clients. We help our clients

sensor technology that is

maximize their cash flow and return on investment.

used to monitor SAGD projects.
In SAGD projects, a horizontal well is drilled into the

As the world’s demand for oil increases and as
production from aging oilfields declines, EOR will become

heavy-oil or oil-sand reservoir to maximize exposure to

even more important. Core Laboratories will continue to

the productive zone. Since heavy hydrocarbons will not

provide enhanced recovery technologies that optimize

flow freely into this producing well, a second horizontal

reservoir performance.

well is drilled above it. Steam is then injected into the
upper well to mobilize the heavy oil. The super-heated,
and now less-viscous oil, can now flow downward
as gravity pulls it into the producing well.

Through reservoir rock and fluid studies,
Core determined that produced gas
reinjected into a Middle East reservoir
would mix with the oil in place and
free it, thereby increasing
production significantly.

In Northern Alberta, steam is injected into an
upper well to lower a heavy oil’s resistance
to flow. Gravity can then pull the oil into a
producing well below.
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CORE LABORATORIES N.V. FORM 10-K
PART I

International Expansion of
Services and Products

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Another component of our business strategy is to broaden the

General

spectrum of services and products offered to our clients on a

Core Laboratories N.V. (“Core Laboratories”, “we”, “our” or

global basis. We plan to use our worldwide network of offices

“us”) was established in 1936 and is one of the world’s leading

to offer many of our new services and products that have been

providers of proprietary and patented reservoir description,

developed internally or obtained through acquisitions. This

production enhancement and reservoir management services

allows us to enhance our revenues through efficient utilization

to the oil and gas industry. These services are directed toward

of our worldwide network.

enabling our clients to improve reservoir performance and
increase oil and gas recovery from their producing fields. We

Acquisitions

have over 70 offices in more than 50 countries and have

We continually review potential acquisitions to add key services

approximately 4,450 employees.

and technologies, enhance market presence or complement
existing businesses. Our recent acquisitions reflect our desire

Business Strategy

to broaden the services we offer within our three primary busi-

Our business strategy is to continue to provide advanced tech-

ness segments to our clients. In order to further our business

nologies that improve reservoir performance by (i) continuing

strategy, in July 2002, we acquired certain assets of Advanced

the development of proprietary technologies through client-

Data Solutions (“ADS”). The addition of the ADS assets

driven research and development, (ii) expanding the services

strengthens the Reservoir Management segment by providing

and products offered throughout our global network of offices

additional depth-imaging and velocity modeling services.

and (iii) acquiring complementary technologies that add key
technologies or market presence and enhance existing prod-

More information relating to acquisitions is included in
Note 3 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

ucts and services.

Operations
Development of New Technologies,

We derive our revenues from services and product sales to

Services and Products

customers primarily in the oil and gas industry.

We conduct research and development to meet the needs of

Our reservoir optimization services and technologies are

our customers who are continually seeking new services and

interrelated and are organized into three complementary seg-

technologies to lower their costs of finding, developing and pro-

ments. Disclosure relating to the results of these business

ducing oil and gas. While the aggregate number of wells being

segments is included in Note 15 of the Notes to Consolidated

drilled per year has fluctuated relative to market conditions, oil

Financial Statements.

and gas producers have, on a proportional basis, increased

• Reservoir Description: Encompasses the characterization

expenditures on technology services which improve their under-

of petroleum reservoir rock, fluid and gas samples. We

standing of the reservoir thereby increasing production of oil

provide analytical and field services to characterize prop-

and gas from their producing fields. We intend to continue

erties of crude oil and petroleum products to the oil and

concentrating our efforts on services and technologies that

gas industry.

improve reservoir performance and increase oil and gas recovery.

• Production Enhancement: Includes products and services
relating to reservoir well completions, perforations,
stimulations and production. We provide integrated

2

services to evaluate the effectiveness of well completions

sets are also used to determine the different acoustic veloci-

and to develop solutions aimed at increasing the effec-

ties of reservoir rocks containing water, oil and natural gas.

tiveness of enhanced oil recovery projects.

These velocity measurements are used in conjunction with

• Reservoir Management: Combines and integrates infor-

our reservoir management services.

mation from reservoir description and production enhancement services to increase production and improve recovery
of oil and gas from our clients’ reservoirs.
We offer our services worldwide through our global network
of offices. Services accounted for approximately 83%, 81%
and 77% of our revenues from operations for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
We manufacture products primarily in four facilities for distribution on a global basis. Product sales accounted for approximately 17%, 19% and 23% of our revenues from operations
for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively.
Our sales backlog at December 31, 2002 was approximately $3.6 million, compared to $5.5 million at December 31,
2001. Sources of raw material are readily available and our
sales backlog should be filled in 2003.

Production Enhancement
We produce data to describe a reservoir system which is used
to enhance oil and gas production so that it will exceed the
average oilfield recovery factor which is approximately 40%.
Two production-enhancement methods commonly used are
(i) hydraulic fracturing of the reservoir rock to improve flow and
(ii) flooding the field with water, carbon dioxide or hydrocarbon
gases to force more oil and gas to the wellbore. Many oilfields
today are hydraulically fractured and flooded to maximize oil
and gas recovery. Our services and technologies play a key
role in the success of both methods.
The hydraulic fracturing of a producing formation is achieved
by pumping a proppant material in a gel slurry into the reservoir
zone at extremely high pressures. This forces fractures to open
in the rock and “props” or holds the fractures open so that
reservoir fluids can flow to the production wellbore.

Reservoir Description

Our data on rock type and strength are critical for deter-

Commercial oil and gas fields consist of porous and permeable

mining the proper design of the hydraulic fracturing job. In

reservoir rocks that contain natural gas, crude oil and water.

addition, our testing indicates whether the gel slurry is com-

Due to the density differences of the fluids, natural gas typically

patible with the reservoir fluids so that damage does not occur

caps the field and overlies an oil layer, which overlies the water.

to the porous rock network. Our proprietary Zero Wash®

We provide services that characterize the porous reservoir

tracer technology is also used to determine that the proppant

rock and all three reservoir fluids. Services relating to these

material was properly placed in the fracture to ensure effective

fluids include determining quality and measuring quantity of

flow and increased recovery.

the fluids and their derived products.
We analyze samples of reservoir rocks for their porosity,

We also introduced a new technology, SpectraChem™ to
aid operators in determining the efficiency of frac fluid perform-

which determines reservoir storage capacity, and for their

ance. SpectraChem™ tracers allow operators to evaluate the

permeability, which defines the ability of the fluids to flow

quantity of frac fluid that returns to the wellbore during the

through the rock. These measurements are used to determine

clean-up period after a hydraulic fracturing event. SpectraChem™

how much oil and gas are present in a reservoir and the rates

is another proprietary technology developed for optimizing

at which the oil and gas can be produced. We also use our

hydraulic frac performance. This technology also allows our

proprietary services and technologies to correlate the reservoir

clients to evaluate load recovery, gas breakthrough, fluid leakoff

description data to wireline logs and seismic data. These data
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and breaker efficiency, all of which are important factors for

most profitable barrel in the reservoir. Producing incremental

optimizing natural gas production after the fracing event.

barrels increases our clients’ cash flows which we believe will

We conduct dynamic flow tests of the reservoir fluids through
the reservoir rock, at actual reservoir pressure and temperature, to realistically simulate the actual flooding of a producing
zone. We use patented technologies, such as our Saturation
(SMAX®),

result in additional capital expenditures of our clients, and
ultimately further opportunities for us.
The integration of the technologies acquired with the ADS
asset purchase into our reservoir management services will

to help design

allow us to provide a powerful and unique range of services and

the enhanced recovery project. After a field flood is initiated, we

products to the geophysical industry, including velocity modeling

are often involved in monitoring the progress of the flood to

and depth imaging to our clients. ADS provides software solu-

ensure the maximum amount of incremental production.

tions for pre-stack depth migration and developed VIEWS™,

Monitoring by the Attenuation of X-rays

We continued to develop a unique completion system

one of the most comprehensive velocity modeling software pack-

(called the Completion Profiler™) to better determine flow

ages available in the industry. ADS was instrumental in develop-

rates from reservoir zones after they have been hydraulically

ing seismic processing on computer processing clusters and

fractured. This provides our clients with production information

has developed expertise in cluster management and optimiza-

without additional well time. Patent applications covering the

tion. In addition, we have acquired the technology to provide four

technology have been filed in the United States of America

versatile migration tools to solve the most complex structural

(“U.S.”) and in certain foreign jurisdictions.

problems. These depth-imaging technologies are: Kirchhoff,

Our PackScan™ technology, which is used as a tool to

Beam Stack, Phase Screen and Shot Domain Fourier Finite

monitor the wellbore in an unconsolidated reservoir, has con-

Difference which we plan to offer through our worldwide net-

tributed to our revenue growth. PackScan™ measures the

work. The combination of our integrated approach to reservoir

density changes in the area around the tool and is designed

characterization, our expertise in core to seismic correlation

to observe the changes within the wellbore to verify the com-

and now our move into the velocity modeling and depth imaging

pleteness of the gravel pack protection of the wellbore.

technology gives us a unique position in the industry.

We are also an industry leader in high-performance perforating and completion systems engineered to maximize well
productivity by reducing, eliminating or overcoming formation
damage during the completion of oil and gas wells.

Marketing and Sales
We market and sell our services and products through a combination of print advertising, technical seminars, trade shows
and sales representatives. Direct sales and marketing are

Reservoir Management

carried out by our sales force, technical experts and operating

Reservoir description and production enhancement information,

managers, as well as by sales representatives and distributors

when applied across an entire oilfield, is used to maximize daily

in various markets where we do not have offices.

production and the ultimate total recovery from the reservoir.
We are involved in numerous large-scale reservoir management
projects, applying proprietary and state-of-the-art techniques
from the earliest phases of a field development program until
the last economic barrel of oil is recovered.
These projects are of increasing importance to oil companies as the incremental barrel is often the lowest cost and

Research and Development
The market for our products and services is characterized by
changing technology and frequent product introduction. As a
result, our success is dependent upon our ability to develop or
acquire new products and services on a cost-effective basis
and to introduce them into the marketplace in a timely manner.
Many of our acquisitions have allowed us to obtain the benefits
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of the acquired company’s research and development projects

denominated in a currency other than the U.S. dollar to an

without the significant costs that would have been incurred if

amount generally equal to the expenses expected to be incurred

we had attempted to develop the products and services on our

in such foreign currency. During 2002, we experienced a foreign

own. Research and development expenditures are charged to

currency loss of $1.8 million relating to our operations and

expense as incurred. We intend to continue committing sub-

financial position in Venezuela. We have not historically engaged

stantial financial resources and effort to the development and

in and do not currently intend to engage in any significant hedg-

acquisition of new products and services. Over the years, we

ing or currency trading transactions designed to compensate

have made a number of technological advances, including the

for adverse currency fluctuations. More information on interna-

development of key technologies utilized in our operations.

tional operations is included in Note 15 of the Notes to

Substantially all of the new technologies have resulted from

Consolidated Financial Statements.

requests and guidance from our clients, particularly major
oil companies. Additional disclosure relating to research and

Geographic Breakdown of Revenues

development is included in Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated

for 2002 (top) and 2001 (bottom)

Financial Statements.

Patents and Trademarks

United States
39%

We believe our patents, trademarks and other intellectual
property rights are an important factor in maintaining our
Other
20%

technological advantage, although no one patent is considered
essential to our success. Typically, we will seek to protect our
intellectual technology in all jurisdictions where we believe the
cost of such protection is warranted. While we have patented

Middle East
3%
Asia Pacific
5%

some of our key technologies, we do not patent all of our pro-

Canada
10%

prietary technology even where regarded as patentable. In
addition to patents, in many instances we protect our trade

Europe/Africa
13%
Latin America
10%

secrets through confidentiality agreements with our employees
and our customers.
United States
41%

International Operations
We operate facilities in more than 50 countries. Our non-U.S.

Europe/Africa
18%

operations accounted for approximately 61%, 59% and 60%
of our revenues from operations during the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Some
of our revenues in the U.S. are generated by projects located
outside the U.S.
While we are subject to fluctuations and changes in currency
exchange rates relating to our international operations, we

Middle East
3%
Asia Pacific
5%
Canada
10%

Other
12%
Latin America
11%

attempt to limit our exposure to foreign currency fluctuations
by limiting the amount in which our foreign contracts are
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Environmental Regulation

turns in the oil and gas industry, or in the oilfield services

We are subject to a variety of governmental regulations relating

business, may have a material adverse effect on our financial

to the use, storage, discharge and disposal of chemicals and

position or results of operations.

gases used in our analytical and manufacturing processes.

The oil and gas industry is highly cyclical and has been sub-

Consistent with our quality assurance and control principles,

ject to significant economic downturns at various times as a

we have established proactive environmental policies with

result of numerous factors affecting the supply of and demand

respect to the handling and disposal of such chemicals, gases,

for oil and natural gas, including the level of capital expenditures

emissions and waste materials. We have engaged outside con-

of the oil and gas industry; the level of drilling activity; the level

sultants to audit our environmental activities and have imple-

of production activity; market prices of oil and gas; worldwide

mented health and safety education and training programs.

economic conditions; interest rates and the cost of capital;

We believe that our operations are currently in compliance

environmental regulations; tax policies; political requirements

with applicable environmental laws and regulations, and that

of national governments; coordination by the Organization of

continued compliance with existing requirements will not have

Petroleum Exporting Countries (“OPEC”); cost of producing

a material adverse effect on our financial position or results of

oil and natural gas; and technological advances.

operations. Public interest in the protection of the environment,
however, has increased dramatically in recent years. We anticipate that the trend toward more expansive and stricter environmental laws and regulations will continue, the occurrence of
which may require us to increase capital expenditures or
operating expenses.

Competition

Employees
As of December 31, 2002, we had approximately 4,450
employees. We do not have any material collective bargaining
agreements and consider relations with our employees to
be good.

Web Site Access to Our Periodic SEC

The businesses in which we engage are competitive. Some of

Reports

our competitors are divisions or subsidiaries of companies that

Our primary Internet address is www.corelab.com. We file

are larger and have greater financial and other resources than

Forms 10-Q and Forms 10-K and current reports on Form 8-K

we have. While no one company competes with us in all of our

with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). These

product and service lines, we face competition in these lines,

reports are available free of charge through our web site as

primarily from independent, regional companies. We compete

soon as reasonably practicable after they are filed electronically

in different product and service lines to various degrees on the

with the SEC. We may from time to time provide important

basis of price, technical performance, availability, quality and

disclosures to investors by posting them in the investor rela-

technical support. Our ability to compete successfully depends

tions section of our web site, as allowed by SEC rules.

on elements both within and outside of our control, including

Materials we file with the SEC may be read and copied at

successful and timely development of new products and serv-

the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street, N.W.,

ices, performance and quality, customer service, pricing,

Washington, D.C. 20549. Information on the operation of the

industry trends and general economic trends.

Public Reference Room may be obtained by calling the SEC at
1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC also maintains an Internet Web

Reliance on the Oil and Gas Industry

site at www.sec.gov that contains reports, proxy and infor-

Our business and operations are substantially dependent upon

mation statements, and other information regarding our

the condition of the global oil and gas industry. Future down-

company that we file electronically with the SEC.
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Risk Factors

International risks

Our forward-looking statements are based on assumptions

We conduct our business in over 50 countries and are subject

that we believe to be reasonable but that may not prove to be

to political and economic instability and the laws and regulations

accurate. All of our forward-looking information is, therefore,

in the countries in which we operate. These include:

subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual

• global economic conditions;

results to differ materially from the results expected. Although

• political actions and requirements of national govern-

it is not possible to identify all factors, these risks and uncer-

ments including trade restrictions, and embargos and

tainties include the risk factors discussed below.

expropriations of assets;
• potential income tax liabilities in multiple jurisdictions;

Industry risks

• war;

The oil and gas industry is highly cyclical and there are

• civil unrest;

numerous factors affecting the supply of and demand for our

• acts of terrorism;

products and services, which include:

• fluctuations and changes in currency exchange rates;

• market prices of oil and gas and expectations
about future prices;

• the impact of inflation; and
• current conditions in Venezuela and Iraq.

• cost of producing oil and natural gas;
• the level of drilling and production activity;
• mergers, consolidations and downsizing among
our clients;
• coordination by OPEC;
• the impact of commodity prices on the expenditure
levels of our customers;
• financial condition of our client base and their ability
to fund capital expenditures; and
• adverse weather conditions.

Economic downturn and political events that continue to
unfold have resulted in lower demand for our products and
services. The war in Iraq and the anticipated repercussions
from terrorist groups that the U.S. government has cautioned
against have further heightened our exposure to international
risks. Our global economy is highly influenced by public confidence in the geopolitical environment and the situation in the
Middle East continues to be highly fluid; therefore, we will
continue to experience heightened international risks.
We recognized a foreign currency loss of $1.8 million

Business risks

related to our Venezuela operations during 2002. The

Our results of operations could be adversely affected by risks

Venezuela economy is still unstable and we will continue to

and uncertainties in the business environment in which we

monitor our operations and financial position in this region.

operate, including:
• competition in our markets;
• the realization of anticipated synergies from acquired
businesses and future acquisitions;
• our ability to continue to develop or acquire new and
useful technology; and
• interest rates and the cost of capital.

Other risks
Our client base could be impacted by events we cannot predict
or we could be impacted by a change in the conduct of business,
transportation and security measures. In addition we are subject
to other risk factors such as the impact of environmental regulations, litigation risks, as well as the dependence on the oil
and gas industry. Many of these risks are beyond our control.
In addition, future trends for pricing, margins, revenues and
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profitability remain difficult to predict in the industries we serve
and under current economic and political conditions.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
Currently, we have over 70 offices (totaling more than one million square feet) in more than 50 countries. In these locations,
we typically lease our office facilities. We serve our worldwide
customers through six Advanced Technology Centers (“ATCs”)
that are located in Houston, Texas; Calgary, Canada; Jakarta,
Indonesia; Rotterdam, The Netherlands; Aberdeen, Scotland;
and Villahermosa, Mexico. The ATCs are supported by over 50
regional specialty centers located throughout the global energy
producing provinces. Our facilities are adequately utilized for

High

Low

2002
First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

$ 15.30
15.85
12.19
11.90

$ 10.45
11.12
8.50
7.90

2001
First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

$ 27.63
26.14
20.30
17.65

$ 18.05
15.85
9.90
11.25

On April 1, 2003, the closing price, as quoted by the
NYSE, was $9.09 per share. As of April 1, 2003, there were
33,277,110 common shares held by approximately 170
record holders and approximately 10,400 beneficial holders.

current operations. However, expansion into new facilities may
be required to accommodate future growth.

Dividend Policy
We have never paid dividends on our common shares and cur-

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

rently have no plans to pay dividends on the common shares. We

From time to time, we may be subject to legal proceedings
and claims that arise in the ordinary course of business. We
believe that the outcome of current legal actions will not have a
material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.
ITEM 4. SUBMISSION
VOTE

OF

operations for the development and growth of our business. Any
future determination as to the payment of dividends will be made
at the discretion of our Supervisory Board and will depend upon
our operating results, financial condition, capital requirements,

MATTERS

TO A

SECURITY HOLDERS

OF

expect that we will retain all available earnings generated by our

There were no matters submitted to a vote of security holders
during the fourth quarter of the year ended December 31, 2002.

income tax treatment of payments, general business conditions
and such other factors as they deem relevant. Because we are a
holding company that conducts substantially all of our operations
through subsidiaries, our ability to pay cash dividends on the
common shares is also dependent upon the ability of our sub-

PART II

sidiaries to pay cash dividends or otherwise distribute or
advance funds to us and on the terms and conditions of our

ITEM 5. MARKET
SHARES

AND

FOR THE

COMMON

RELATED SHAREHOLDER

existing and future credit arrangements. See “Liquidity and
Capital Resources” included in “Management’s Discussion and

MATTERS

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”.

Price Range of Common Shares

Recent Issuance of Unregistered Securities

Our common shares trade on the New York Stock Exchange

Disclosure related to recent issuances of common shares is

(“NYSE”) under the symbol “CLB”. The range of high and low

included in Note 3 and Note 10 of the Notes to Consolidated

sales prices per share of the common shares as reported by

Financial Statements. With respect to the shares issued in

the NYSE are set in the following table for the periods indicated.

each acquisition, we relied on exemption from registration
under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

(“Andersen”) that ceased operations. A copy of the report pre-

The selected consolidated financial information contained below

viously issued by Andersen on our financial statements as of

is derived from our Consolidated Financial Statements and

December 31, 2001 and 2000 and for each of the three years

should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion

in the period ended December 31, 2001 is included elsewhere

and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”

in the Form 10-K. Such audit report has not been reissued by

and our audited consolidated financial statements.

Andersen.

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the fiscal years
1998 through 2001 were audited by Arthur Andersen LLP
Years Ended December 31,
(in thousands, except per share and other data)
Financial Statement Data:
Revenues
Income before cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle
Net income (loss)
Working capital
Total assets
Long-term debt and capital leases obligations,
including current maturities
Shareholders’ equity
Per Share Data:
Earnings before cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle:
Basic
Diluted
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations:
Basic
Diluted
Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic
Diluted
Other Data:
Current Ratio
Debt to Capitalization Ratio6

20021

20011,3,4

20001,4

19993,4,5

19982,4,5

$364,748

$ 376,572

$ 340,933

$ 325,827

$ 319,685

7,630
(9,062)
125,589
421,153

20,632
20,632
139,342
439,500

17,830
17,830
121,330
413,346

2,196
2,196
93,574
374,526

21,256
21,256
62,644
369,266

89,180
258,146

95,627
275,606

84,020
251,065

88,512
212,728

93,782
203,954

$
$

0.23
0.23

$
$

0.62
0.60

$
$

0.55
0.53

$
$

0.07
0.07

$
$

0.73
0.70

$
$

(0.27)
(0.27)

$
$

0.62
0.60

$
$

0.55
0.53

$
$

0.07
0.07

$
$

0.73
0.70

33,174
33,174

33,075
34,272

3.5:1
25%

4.5:1
25%

32,388
33,539

31,449
32,443

3.2:1
24%

29,226
30,252

2.8:1
27%

1.9:1
30%

1) See Note 3 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of acquisitions made in 2002, 2001 and 2000.
2) In 1998, we sold our packaged analyzer business line. The total loss relating to this sale and discontinuance of operations was $3,591.
3) In 1999 and 2001, we recorded restructuring, write-offs and other charges of $17,706 and $8,725, respectively, as discussed in Note 16 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.
4) All periods have been restated to reflect the pooling-of-interests acquisition of PROMORE in 2001.
5) Results from our environmental testing assets are included in all periods through September 30, 1999. These assets were sold effective September 30, 1999.
6) Debt to capitalization ratio is calculated as follows: debt divided by cash, debt and shareholders’ equity.
Debt to Capitalization Ratio

Current Ratio

Total Assets (in $ millions)

30%

5

450

25%

4

400

3

350

2

300

1

250

20%
15%
10%
5%
0

0
2002

2001

2000

1999

1998

200
2002

2001

2000

1999

1998

2002

2001

2000

1999

1998
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION
AND

ANALYSIS

AND

RESULTS

OF

OF

FINANCIAL CONDITION

customers have used, and may continue to use, their global
presence and market influence to seek economies of scale and
pricing concessions.

OPERATIONS

General

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Generally, our customers’ expectations about their capital

Management’s discussion and analysis of our financial position

expenditure programs change in correlation to rig activity and

and results of operations are based on financial statements

the prices of oil and natural gas. Accordingly, the changes in

prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting prin-

their capital expenditures will normally result in increased or

ciples (“GAAP”) in the U.S. and require management to make

decreased demand for our products and services.

estimates and assumptions during their preparation. The follow-

Although commodity prices for both natural gas and crude

ing critical accounting policies affect our significant judgments:

oil rose throughout 2002, activity levels in the oilfield service

• revenue recognition;

sector did not increase commensurately. Rig count did improve

• long-lived assets, intangibles and goodwill;

in the U.S. markets early in the year, only to stay virtually

• inventory valuation allowances;

unchanged from May until the end of the year. Rig count

• income taxes; and

activity outside the U.S. remained relatively constant

• estimates.

throughout the year.

Revenue Recognition
Revenues are recognized as services are completed or as

Rig Count/Oil and Gas Prices

Worldwide Rig Count
U.S. Rig Count
Crude Oil Price per Barrel
Natural Gas Price per MCF

2002
1,957
856
$ 29.78
$ 4.65

Year Ended
2001
1,917
901
$ 19.47
$ 2.33

product title is transferred. All advance client payments are
2000
2,212
1,097
$ 28.41
$ 8.08

Production of natural gas in 2002 was down compared to

classified as unearned revenues until services are earned or
product title is transferred. We recognize revenue consistent
with the guidance set forth in the SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin
No. 101, (“SAB 101”), as amended. To determine proper revenue recognition, we ensure that we follow these principles:

the prior year, which contributed to an increase in the price of

(i) persuasive evidence an arrangement exists; (ii) delivery has

natural gas during the year. In addition, the amount of natural

occurred or services rendered; (iii) the fee is fixed and deter-

gas in storage changed from being at near five-year highs at

minable; and (iv) collectibility is reasonably assured. Revenues

the beginning of the year to significantly below average levels

from long-term contracts are recorded as services are ren-

March 31, 2003. Oil prices also rose throughout the year due

dered in proportion to the work performed. All known or antici-

principally to geopolitical reasons.

pated losses on contracts are provided for currently. Training

Outside North America, our sales grew during the year to
record levels despite the continued depressed activity levels of
our clients. However, due to the lower activity levels in North

and consulting service revenues are recognized as the services
are performed.
Sales of perpetual software licenses, net of deferred main-

America, the products and services that we offer into those

tenance fees, are recorded as revenue once the criteria of

markets suffered during the year. We continue our efforts to

Statement of Position 98-9, “Modification of SOP 97-2,

expand our market presence by opening strategic facilities and

Software Revenue Recognition With Respect to Certain

realizing synergies within our business lines. Also, as a result

Transactions” are successfully met. We primarily license our

of the consolidation in the oil and gas industry, some of our

software products under perpetual licenses. Customer support
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agreements are recorded as unearned revenues and recognized

adverse effect upon our financial position and results of opera-

as revenue ratably over the contract period, generally one year.

tions. Upon adoption, in the first quarter of 2002, we recorded
an impairment of goodwill of approximately $16.7 million relat-

Long-lived Assets, Intangibles and Goodwill
Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost. Major
renewals and improvements are capitalized and depreciated
over the respective asset’s remaining useful life. Maintenance
and repair costs are charged to expense as incurred. When

ed to our Reservoir Management segment which is reflected in
the consolidated statement of operations as a cumulative
effect of change in accounting principle. The cessation of goodwill amortization under the guidelines resulted in a reduction
in operating expenses of approximately $4.2 million in 2002.

assets are sold or retired, the remaining costs and related
accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts

Inventory Valuation Allowances

and any resulting gain or loss is included in income.

Our valuation reserve for inventory is based on historical data,

Property, plant and equipment held and used by us is

and various other assumptions and judgments. Should these

reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circum-

assumptions and judgments not come to fruition our valuation

stances indicate the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.

would change. The industry we operate in is subject to techno-

Indicators of possible impairment include extended periods of

logical change and new product development that could result

idle use and/or an inability to contract specific assets or

in obsolete inventory. Our valuation reserve for inventory at

groups of assets.

December 31, 2002 was $0.3 million compared to $1.8 million

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board

at December 31, 2001. If we over or underestimate demand

(“FASB”) issued two statements, Statement of Financial

for inventory, it could result in a material adverse effect upon

Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) 141, “Business Combinations”,

our financial position and results of operations.

and SFAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, that
amend Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 16,
“Business Combinations”, and supersede APB Opinion No. 17,
“Intangible Assets.” SFAS 141 eliminates the pooling-of-interests
method of accounting for business combinations and establishes the purchase method of accounting as the only acceptable
method for all business combinations initiated after June 30,
2001. Four of our acquisitions in 2000 and 2001 were
accounted for using the pooling-of-interests method of accounting and were completed prior to the adoption of SFAS 141.
Goodwill resulting from a business combination from an asset
acquisition occurring after June 30, 2001 is to be recognized
as an asset but not amortized, while goodwill existing at June
30, 2001 was amortized through December 31, 2001. As a
result of adoption of SFAS 142, beginning January 1, 2002, we
no longer amortize goodwill but will test for impairment annually
or more frequently if circumstances indicate a potential impairment. Any resulting impairment loss could result in a material

Income Taxes
Our income tax expense includes income taxes of The
Netherlands, U.S. and other foreign countries as well as local,
state and provincial income taxes. We recognize deferred tax
assets or liabilities for the differences between the financial
statement carrying amount and tax basis of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect for the years in which
the asset is recovered or the liability is settled. Any valuation
allowance recorded is based on estimates and assumptions of
taxable income into the future and a determination is made of
the magnitude of deferred tax assets which are more likely
than not to be realized. At December 31, 2002, we had
recorded approximately $7.7 million of valuation allowances
related to our net deferred tax assets. If these estimates and
related assumptions change in the future, we may be required
to record additional valuation allowances against our deferred
tax assets and our effective tax rate may increase which could
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result in a material adverse effect on our financial position,

of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. We eval-

results of operations and cash flows.

uate our estimates on an ongoing basis and base these esti-

For a detailed discussion of our accounting policies see

mates on our historical experience as well as on various other

Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

assumptions that we believe are reasonable in a given circumstance. By nature, these judgments are subject to an inherent

Estimates

degree of uncertainty. We consider an accounting estimate to

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S.
GAAP requires management to make certain estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts

Key Estimate

be critical if it requires us to make assumptions about matters
that were uncertain at the time we are making the estimate
and if changes in the estimate under different assumptions
would have had a material impact on our financial condition.
Critical estimates include:

Nature of Estimates Required

Assumptions Used

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Estimating allowance for doubtful accounts requires
that we determine whether customer receivables
may not be collectible.

We base our estimate on historical collection
activity and our current understanding of
the aging of existing amounts outstanding
based on our clients’ representations.

Inventory reserves

Estimating reserves for inventory requires forecasting
of obsolescence, inventory excess and customer
demand as well as taking into account changes in

We base our estimate on historical excess and
obsolescence, as well as our expectations
of customer commitments.

technological advances.
Depreciation and amortization

Estimating depreciation and amortization requires
us to estimate the useful lives and salvage values
of our assets.

Lives assigned reflect our best estimate
based on historical data of the respective
asset’s useful life and salvage value. If our
operating plans change it could result in
impairment of these assets.

Income taxes

We estimate the likelihood of the recoverability of
our deferred tax asset (in particular, net operating
loss carryforwards).

We use historical and projected future operating
results, including a review of the eligible carryforward period, tax planning opportunities
and other relevant considerations. If the laws
of some of our tax jurisdictions change it could
significantly alter our estimates.

Long-lived assets, intangibles
and goodwill

We periodically review the recoverability of our
assets, particularly when changes in circumstances
suggest that the recorded cost may not be recoverable.
The measure of possible impairment is based primarily
on the ability to recover the balance of the related
asset from expected future operating cash flows on
an undiscounted basis.

We estimate cash flows using internal budgets based on historical information as well as
customer commitments and expected market
trends. Our impairment analysis is subjective
and assumptions regarding future growth rates
and operating expenses could have a significant
effect on expected future cash flows and our
ultimate impairment analysis.

12

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

the services and products offered throughout our global net-

We hold investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries whose

work of offices and (iii) acquiring complementary businesses

operations are in-line with those of our core businesses. Our

that add key technologies or market presence and enhance

investment and operating percentages in these entities are

existing products and services.

included in our consolidated financial statements. These entities
are not considered special purpose entities nor do we have
special off-balance sheet arrangements through these entities.

Results of Operations
Service Revenues and Cost of Services
(Dollars in Millions)

They are not consolidated due to the limited influence we have
in making management decisions. We do not expect our investments to have a material adverse effect on our financial posi-

300

300

200

200

100

100

tion or results of operations.

traded on the New York Stock Exchange.
We provide our products and services to the world’s major,
national and independent oil companies. Our specialty services

Cost of Services

Core Laboratories was established in 1936 and is currently

Service Revenues

Business

and products are designed to improve oil and gas recovery
from new and existing fields through the following business
segments:
• Reservoir Description: Encompasses the characteriza-

0

0
2002

tion of petroleum reservoir rock, fluid and gas samples.
We provide analytical and field services to characterize

Service Revenues

2001

2000

Cost of Services

properties of crude oil and petroleum products to the oil
and gas industry.
• Production Enhancement: Includes products and services relating to reservoir well completions, perforations,
stimulations and production. We provide integrated services to evaluate the effectiveness of well completions
and to develop solutions aimed at increasing the effectiveness of enhanced oil recovery projects.
• Reservoir Management: Combines and integrates information from reservoir description and production enhancement
services to increase production and improve recovery of oil
and gas from our clients’ reservoirs.
We plan to continue the expansion of our operations through

The discussion of operating results at the consolidated level
is followed by a more detailed discussion of operating results
by segment.
Our revenues are derived from services and product sales.
Service revenues in 2002 were $302.1 million as compared
to $304.6 million in 2001. While oilfield activity levels in North
America were weak, this was offset by sales of our services
outside of the North American markets as well as the $3.4
million of revenue attributable to the acquisition of ADS. In
2001, strong demand for our services led to revenue growth
of $41.1 million as compared to 2000. These increases were
primarily derived from an increase in oilfield activity in the first

(i) continuing the development of proprietary technologies

half of 2001 in North America for our production enhance-

through client-driven research and development, (ii) expanding

ment projects.
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Cost of services in 2002 were $240.8 million, an

2000. Significantly lower demand for our products was spurred

increase of $8.1 million from 2001. Costs of services in 2001

by the deep decline in drilling for natural gas in the North

were $232.7, an increase of $20.1 million from 2000. Cost

American markets.

of services expressed as a percentage of service revenue were

Cost of sales in 2002 were $60.5 million, a decrease

80%, 76% and 81% in 2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively.

of $0.2 million as compared to 2001. Cost of sales in 2001

The increase in the costs of services percentage was primarily

decreased $1.7 million from $62.3 million in 2000. Cost of

due to the completion of international projects with lower margins

sales expressed as a percentage of sales revenues were 96%

coupled with a decrease in higher margin projects in the North

in 2002, 84% in 2001 and 80% in 2000. A contributing factor

American production enhancement business. Cost of services

to the decline in margins in 2002 was the currency devaluation

for Venezuela remained steady while revenues declined drasti-

in Venezuela of $1.8 million.

cally due to the business disruptions experienced in these

General and administrative expenses are comprised of

countries.

corporate management and centralized administrative services
that benefit our operating subsidiaries. We experienced an

Sales Revenues and Cost of Sales

increase of $4.3 million in 2002 from 2001 and $2.4 million in

(Dollars in Millions)

2001 from 2000. In 2002, general and administrative expenses
as a percentage of revenue were 6% as compared to 4% in

80

80

2001 and 2000. The increases were due to increased staffing
levels as well as continued implementation of a company-wide
financial accounting system.
60

60

Depreciation and amortization expense for 2002 was

2001. In 2001 we had an increase of $3.1 million compared
40

40

Cost of Sales

Sales Revenues

$20.1 million, an increase of $1.7 million as compared to

to 2000. These increases were due primarily to the additional
capital investments that occurred in both 2002 and 2001.
As a result of the adoption of SFAS 142 beginning January 1,
2002, we no longer amortize goodwill but will test for impair-

20

20

ment annually or more frequently if circumstances indicate a
potential impairment. Under these requirements, in the first
quarter of 2002 we reflected impairment of goodwill of approximately $16.7 million related to our Reservoir Management

0

0
2002

2001

segment. This impairment is reflected in the consolidated state-

2000

ment of operations as a cumulative effect of change in
Sales Revenues

Cost of Sales

accounting principle. The cessation of goodwill amortization
under the guidelines resulted in a reduction in operating

Decreased sales demand for two consecutive years led to
a decline in sales revenue in 2002 and 2001. Sales revenue in

expenses of approximately $4.2 million in 2002.
During the fourth quarter of 2001, we recorded write-offs

2002 decreased by 13% to $62.7 million compared to $72.0

and other charges of $5.8 million. These charges were com-

million in 2001 and decreased by 7% in 2001 as compared to

prised of inventory write-downs of $3.9 million, charges of

14

$0.4 million to write fixed assets down to their fair value, and

Mexico to Villahermosa, Mexico. We intend to complete the

other costs of $1.5 million to migrate data from legacy com-

relocation of one of our operations from Dallas to the Houston

puter systems to a global information system database.

Advanced Technology Center in early 2003. This charge of

During the fourth quarter of 2001 we also had several

approximately $3.0 million affected each of our operating seg-

transactions that impacted certain operations that were not

ments as follows: Reservoir Description — $0.8 million;

viewed as ongoing. We restructured certain operations in

Production Enhancement — $0.1 million; Reservoir

Mexico, the United Kingdom, the U.S. and other countries to

Management — $2.1 million. Substantially all employee

improve operating efficiencies. This restructuring expense

terminations were completed by the end of the first quarter of

included write-offs of assets and leasehold improvements, and

2002. Total cash required for this restructuring charge of $2.1

an accrual for facility restoration, severance benefits (for

million will be funded from operating activities. Cash required

approximately 100 field employees) and lease termination

for the costs incurred through December 31, 2002 was $1.6

costs. The remaining accruals for facility restoration should be

million. This charge is summarized in the following table:

utilized in 2003 and the lease obligations will be utilized by May
2005. During 2002 we relocated a facility from Mexico City,

Restructuring Charges
(Dollars in Thousands)

Total restructuring charges
Less: Costs incurred through December 31, 2001
Accrual remaining at December 31,2001
Less: Costs incurred through December 31, 2002
Accrual remaining at December 31,2002

Lease
Obligations
$ 598
38
560
155
$ 405

Severance
$ 951
394
557
557
$
—

Restoration
$ 380
—
380
285
$
95

Asset
Write-offs1
$ 862
862
—
—
$ —

Other
$ 184
40
144
99
$
45

Total
$ 2,975
1,334
1,641
1,096
$ 545

1) The fixed assets and leasehold improvements were disposed of by the end of December 2001. The write-off approximates the carrying amount as these assets
were abandoned or sold for salvage value. Depreciation expense was reduced by approximately $20 in 2001, $82 in 2002 and $281 thereafter. The asset write-offs
of $862 were attributable to the Reservoir Management segment.

Other expense in 2002 was $2.4 million compared to

The 2002 effective income tax rate increased to 42%

other income of $0.5 million in 2001 and $1.2 million in

of operating income before cumulative effect of change in

2000. The change from 2001 to 2002 consists primarily of

accounting principle from the 2001 rate of 28%. This increase

additional foreign currency losses of $2.0 million. The change

was the result of an increase in expenses that are not

from 2000 to 2001 was the result of a reduced gain on sale

deductible for tax purposes and an increased valuation

of assets and additional foreign currency losses.

allowance on Venezuela deferred tax assets. The decrease

Interest expense for 2002 was $7.6 million, a decrease

from 32% in 2000 to 28% in 2001 reflects the relative

of approximately $0.3 million as compared to 2001. Interest

increase in international earnings taxed at rates lower than

expense decreased by $0.4 million in 2001 as compared to

The Netherlands statutory rate. For a reconciliation of the

2000. The decrease in interest expense was primarily attribut-

statutory rate of 34.5% to the effective rate, see Note 9 of

able to lower borrowing costs and lower levels of debt.

the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Segment Analysis
Our operations are managed primarily in three complementary segments – Reservoir Description, Production Enhancement and
Reservoir Management.
Segment Information
Revenues
For the Years Ended December 31,
(Dollars in Thousands)

Reservoir Description
Production Enhancement
Reservoir Management
Total Revenues

2002
$ 220,282
91,822
52,644
$ 364,748

2001
$ 213,917
104,262
58,393
$ 376,572

2000
$ 192,741
92,326
55,866
$ 340,933

2002
$
24,952
3,252
(2,660)
(4,786)
$
20,758

20011
$ 33,277
14,314
(2,002)
(287)
$ 45,302

2000
23,356
14,370
(3,492)
156
$ 34,390

Operating income (loss) before interest,
taxes and unusual charges
For the Years Ended December 31,
(Dollars in Thousands)

Reservoir Description
Production Enhancement
Reservoir Management
Corporate and other2
Income before interest, taxes and unusual charges

$

1) Segment amounts exclude unusual charges totaling $8,725 in 2001. The unusual charges, which are comprised of write-offs, restructuring charges and other
charges in the fourth quarter of 2001, were allocated as follows: Reservoir Description — $2,549; Production Enhancement — $2,133; Reservoir Management —
$2,528 and Corporate and other — $1,515.
2) “Corporate and other” represents those items that are not directly related to a particular segment.

Reservoir Description

250

Reservoir Description revenues for 2002 were $220.3 million,
an increase of 3% compared to 2001. This increase was

200

mainly attributable to increased activity levels outside North
America. In addition, we experienced an increase in demand
for our website services and penetrated new markets in the

150

former Soviet Union. Revenues for 2001 were $213.9 million,
an increase of 11% compared to 2000 revenues. During 2001

100

we introduced technology in our Gulf of Mexico operations in
the form of well site and laboratory analysis of unconsolidated
core from deepwater reservoirs. Improved market conditions

50

in the Middle East and Asia Pacific also contributed to the
increase in revenue.
Operating income before interest, taxes and unusual
charges in 2002 decreased $8.3 million as compared to

16

0
2002

2001

2000

Reservoir Description Revenues (Dollars in Millions)

2001. Reduced activity levels by our clients in North America

Operating income before interest, taxes and unusual

were the primary factor for our lower earnings in 2002. Other

charges in 2002 decreased by 77% as compared to 2001.

contributing factors to the decrease were political instability

Sales of lower margin services and the general decline in the

in Venezuela and currency devaluation. We experienced an

North American markets impacted earnings in this segment. In

increase in income before interest, taxes and unusual charges

2001, our earnings remained constant compared to 2000. In

of $9.9 million in 2001 as compared to 2000. Reduced oper-

2001, in an effort to improve manufacturing efficiencies, we

ating costs in the U.S. due to the consolidation of businesses

recorded expense in cost of sales of approximately $3.3 million

led to the increase in margins in 2001 as compared to 2000.

for several initiatives. These initiatives were implemented in the
fourth quarter whereby certain processes and business prac-

Production Enhancement

tices were evaluated and improvements were made. These

Production Enhancement revenues for 2002 were $91.8
million, a decrease of 12% compared to 2001 revenues. Due
to lower industry activity levels, we continued to experience
decreased demand for our well completion and stimulation
technologies, primarily in our North American markets. The

costs were offset by income increases due to new initiatives
with our downhole completion technologies and incremental
margins on fracture diagnostic and field flood monitoring services as the introduction of new services and products in our
production enhancement segment increased.

introduction of two new services, PackScan™ and Completion
Profiler™, contributed to the increase in revenue of 13% in

Reservoir Management

2001 compared to 2000. In addition, we increased Canadian

Reservoir Management revenues for 2002 were $52.6 million,

market penetration with proprietary perforating charges and

a decrease of 10% compared to 2001 revenues. As part of our

gun systems with our 2001 asset purchase of Tesco

refocus effort for this group which we announced at the begin-

Corporation’s Gris Gun.

ning of the year, we elected to transition from lower margin jobs

60

125

100
45

75
30

50

15
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Production Enhancement Revenues (Dollars in Millions)

2002

2001

2000

Reservoir Management Revenues (Dollars in Millions)
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to more integrated higher margin projects, consequently, rev-

$6.6 million as part of management’s efforts to improve inven-

enues decreased. The new projects include higher content

tory turns. The decrease in inventory was offset by an increase

of our proprietary services and engineering capabilities for pro-

in prepaid expenses and other current assets of $3.9 million,

viding field and basin-wide production optimization solutions.

primarily attributed to an increase in prepaid insurance.

Despite our continued efforts to refocus our business
strategy in this segment, we recognized a loss of $2.7 million

Accounts payable increased $5.7 million and other accrued
expenses increased $6.5 million.

in operating income before interest, taxes and unusual charges.

For the year ended December 31, 2001 we generated

In 2001, although we experienced a loss, our margins improved

approximately $28.9 million of cash and cash equivalents from

compared to 2000.

operating activities, principally resulting from our net income of

We recorded a restructuring charge of $3.0 million during

$20.6 million, as adjusted for non-cash items such as depreci-

2001 to reflect our costs to restructure and refocus this seg-

ation and amortization of $18.4 million and goodwill amortiza-

ment of our business. Beginning in 2001 certain facilities were

tion of $4.2 million. Other changes that offset the non-cash

downsized or closed, causing our workforce in this segment to

items included a decrease in accounts receivable and accounts

be reduced by 45% from the highest levels in 2001. We have

payable of $2.7 million and $6.8 million, respectively. The

taken and will continue to take actions, including, but not limited

decrease in accrued expenses was primarily attributed to

to, employee terminations and facility consolidations, when

income taxes payable of $4.4 million, accrued payroll of $1.6

appropriate, to control our costs and generate additional serv-

million and deferred compensation of $1.3 million.

ice revenues in order to improve our results in this segment.

During the year ended December 31, 2000 cash provided
by operating activities was $7.8 million resulting from our net

Liquidity and Capital Resources

income and adjustments for non-cash expenses such as depre-

General

ciation and amortization of $15.2 million, goodwill amortization

We have historically financed our activities through cash on

of $4.1 million and deferred income tax benefit of $1.2 million.

hand, cash flows from operations, bank credit facilities, equity

These items were offset by changes in assets and liabilities

financing and the issuance of debt.

which included an increase in accounts receivable of $26.9 mil-

Cash from Operating Activities
In 2002, $41.0 million in cash was provided by operating activi-

lion, an increase in inventory of $8.5 million and an increase in
accounts payable of $5.0 million.

ties compared with $28.9 million in 2001. The change from

Cash from Investing Activities

2001 was primarily a result of non-cash charges, including

Our investing activities used $25.3 million in 2002 compared

a cumulative effect of change in accounting principle of

to using $40.8 million in 2001, while 2000 investing activities

$16.7 million due to the impairment of goodwill related to our

used $28.9 million. During 2002, we incurred capital expendi-

Reservoir Management segment, as well as an increase in

tures of $19.1 million, which included a lab and office facility

depreciation and amortization of $1.7 million from prior years

in Russia for approximately $3.0 million. We also acquired

as a result of depreciation on additional capital investments

certain assets from ADS for approximately $8.0 million and

made in both 2002 and 2001. Provision for doubtful accounts

received proceeds from the sale of assets of approximately

increased by $4.5 million as we recorded a provision based

$1.8 million.

on our historical experience with accounts receivable collection
due to current market conditions. Inventory decreased by
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Our investing activities used $40.8 million in 2001, primarily
attributable to capital expenditures of $29.0 million and the

acquisition of Gris Gun for $12.8 million in cash. During the

which certain shareholders sold 4,644,988 of their common

year ended December 31, 2000, we incurred capital expendi-

shares. In connection with the offering, the underwriters exer-

tures of $33.4 million, which included cash outlays for the

cised their over-allotment option and purchased 696,748 com-

facility consolidated in Houston.

mon shares from us, which resulted in net proceeds of $17.2
million. These funds were used principally to reduce indebted-

Cash from Financing Activities

ness and fund capital expenditures.

We repaid debt and repurchased our common shares in 2002,
as a result, our financing activities used $15.2 million in 2002,

Credit Facilities and Available Future Liquidity

compared to providing $13.9 million in 2001, while 2000

We maintain financial flexibility through our $100 million Credit

financing activities provided $14.8 million. The significant

Facility of which $87.0 million was available at December 31,

financing activities in 2002 were as follows:

2002. As of March 31, 2003, approximately $83.0 million

• We enacted a share repurchase program approved by

was available under this Credit Facility. In addition, we have

shareholders at our annual meeting in May 2002. The

Senior Notes, which bear interest at an average interest rate

program authorized the purchase of up to 10% of our

of 8.16%. The Senior Notes require semi-annual interest pay-

outstanding shares through November 29, 2003. The

ments; interest payments on the Credit Facility are made

repurchase of shares in the open market is at the dis-

based on the interest period selected. The terms of the Credit

cretion of management. During 2002, we repurchased

Facility and Senior Notes require us to meet certain financial

approximately 860,400 shares for an aggregate purchase

and operational covenants. We believe that we are in compliance

price of approximately $9.0 million. We may use these

with all such covenants contained in our credit agreements at

shares to finance future acquisitions.

December 31, 2002. All of our material wholly owned subsidiaries

• Our total borrowings were $16.7 million, while
repayments were approximately $23.5 million.
Our financing activities for 2001 included total borrowings
of approximately $20.0 million, while repayments were approximately $8.7 million. In 2000, we completed a public offering in

are guarantors or co-borrowers under both credit agreements.
We lease certain property, primarily land and buildings as
well as office equipment and vehicles that are included in our
analysis of operating leases.
The following table summarizes our future contractual obligations (in thousands):

Contractual Obligations:
Long-term debt
Capital leases
Operating leases
Total contractual obligations

Total
$ 89,100
80
17,045
$ 106,225

Less than
1 year
$
1,100
45
3,339
$
4,484

2-3 Years
$ 20,000
35
3,735
$ 23,770

4-5 Years
$ 22,000
—
2,245
$ 24,245

More than
5 Years
$ 46,000
—
7,726
$ 53,726
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We additionally have standby letters of credit as security

of adoption of SFAS 142, beginning January 1, 2002,

for bids and performance on certain contracts of approximately

we no longer amortize goodwill but will test for impairment

$2.6 million. We do not believe these letters of credit will

annually or more frequently if circumstances indicate a potential

be drawn.

impairment. Any resulting impairment loss could result in a

In connection with the ADS acquisition, additional purchase

material adverse effect on our financial position and results of

price consideration may be due dependent upon the outcome of

operations. Upon adoption, in the first quarter of 2002 we

certain contingent targets included within the purchase agree-

recorded an impairment of goodwill of approximately $16.7

ment; the maximum additional consideration would be $8.0

million related to our Reservoir Management segment, which is

million. Any such consideration would subsequently result in

reflected in the consolidated statement of operations as a

an adjustment to goodwill.

cumulative effect of change in accounting principle. The cessa-

We expect our capital expenditure program to be approxi-

tion of goodwill amortization under the guidelines resulted in a

mately $20.0 million in 2003. In addition, we plan to continue

reduction of approximately $4.2 million in annual operating

our repurchase of shares on the open market through our

expenses, assuming no additional impairment of goodwill.

stock buy-back program. Our share repurchase is dependent

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS 143, “Accounting for

on market conditions as well as our ability to generate free

Asset Retirement Obligations.” SFAS 143 addresses financial

cash flow.

accounting and reporting for obligations associated with the

Our ability to maintain and increase our operating income

retirement of long-lived assets and the associated asset retire-

and cash flow is dependent upon continued capital spending.

ment costs. SFAS 143 requires that the fair value of a liability

We believe our cash on hand, future cash flow from operations,

associated with an asset retirement be recognized in the period

supplemented, if necessary, by our borrowing capacity and

in which it is incurred if a reasonable estimate of fair value can

issuances of additional equity should be sufficient to meet

be made. The associated retirement costs are capitalized as

debt requirements, capital expenditures, working capital and

part of the carrying amount of the long-lived asset and subse-

future acquisitions.

quently depreciated over the life of the asset. SFAS 143 will be
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 31, 2002.

Accounting Pronouncements
In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”)
issued two statements, SFAS 141, “Business Combinations”,
and SFAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, that
amend APB Opinion No. 16, “Business Combinations”, and
supersede APB Opinion No. 17, “Intangible Assets.” SFAS 141
eliminates the pooling-of-interests method of accounting for
business combinations and establishes the purchase method of
accounting as the only acceptable method on all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001. Goodwill resulting from
a business combination after June 30, 2001 is to be recognized
as an asset but not amortized, while goodwill existing at June 30,
2001 was amortized through December 31, 2001. As a result

20

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS 144, “Accounting
for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” SFAS 144
addresses the financial accounting and reporting for the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets. SFAS 144 supersedes
SFAS 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived
Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed of.” SFAS 144
provides updated guidance for recognition and measurement
of an impairment loss for certain types of long-lived assets and
modifies the accounting and reporting of discontinued operations. SFAS 144 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 31, 2001. The adoption of SFAS 144 did not have
a material adverse effect upon our financial position or results
of operations.

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, “Rescission

based employee compensation on reported net income and

of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment of FASB

earnings per share in annual and interim financial statements,

Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections.” Due to the

which we have adopted as of December 31, 2002. We do

nature of our business, FASB 44, 64 and Amendment of

not expect the remaining provisions of SFAS 148 to have a

FASB 13 are not applicable. SFAS 145 eliminates SFAS No. 4

material adverse effect upon our financial position or results

“Reporting Gains and Losses from Extinguishment of Debt” and

of operations.

states that gains and losses from extinguishment of debt

In November 2002 the FASB issued Interpretation (“FIN”)

should be classified as extraordinary items only if they meet

No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements,

the criteria in APB Opinion No. 30 “Reporting the Results of

Including Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others.” FIN 45

Operations-Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a

requires that upon issuance of certain types of guarantees, a

Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring

guarantor recognize and account for the fair value of the guar-

Events and Transactions”. APB Opinion No. 30 defines extraor-

antee as a liability. FIN 45 contains exclusions to this require-

dinary items as events and transactions that are distinguished

ment, including the exclusion of a parent’s guarantee of its sub-

by their unusual nature and by the infrequency of their occurrence.

sidiaries’ debt to a third party. The initial recognition and meas-

The provisions of SFAS 145 related to the classification of gains

urement provisions of FIN 45 should be applied on a prospec-

or losses attributable to debt extinguishments are effective for

tive basis for guarantees issued or modified after December 31,

fiscal years beginning after May 15, 2002. We do not expect

2002. The disclosure requirements of FIN 45 are effective for

SFAS 145 to have a material adverse effect upon our financial

financial statements of both interim and annual periods ending

position or results of operations.

after December 31, 2002. The adoption of FIN 45 is not

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting
for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.” SFAS 146
requires companies to recognize costs associated with exit or

expected to have a material impact on our consolidated financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.
In January 2003 the FASB issued FIN No. 46,

disposal activities when they are incurred rather that at the

“Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” which addresses

date of commitment to an exit or disposal plan. We will adopt

the consolidation of variable interest entities (“VIEs”) by busi-

SFAS 146 for all exit or disposal activities initiated after

ness enterprises that are the primary beneficiaries. A VIE is an

December 31, 2002. We do not expect SFAS 146 to have a

entity that does not have sufficient equity investment at risk to

material adverse effect upon our financial position or results

permit it to finance its activities without additional subordinated

of operations.

financial support, or whose equity investors lack the character-

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148,

istics of a controlling financial interest. The primary beneficiary

“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition

of a VIE is the enterprise that has the majority of the risks or

and Disclosure”. This Statement amends SFAS No. 123,

rewards associated with the VIE. The consolidation require-

“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”, to provide alterna-

ments of FIN 46 apply immediately to VIEs created after

tive methods of transition to SFAS No. 123’s fair value method

January 31, 2003. For VIEs created at an earlier date, the

of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. This

consolidation requirements apply in the first fiscal year or

statement also amends the disclosure provision of SFAS No. 123

interim period beginning after June 15, 2003. Certain disclo-

and APB No. 28, “Interim Financial Reporting”, to require dis-

sure requirements apply in all financial statements issued after

closure in the summary of significant accounting policies of the

January 31, 2003, regardless of when the VIE was established.

effects of an entity’s accounting policy with respect to stock-

Based on current information, we believe we have no material
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interests in VIEs that will require disclosure or consolidation

“predict” and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-

under FIN 46.

looking statements. We based our statements on our current
expectations, estimates, historical trends, current conditions

Inflation
Due to the low inflationary rates in 2002, 2001 and 2000, the
impact of inflation on our results of operations was insignificant.

Income Taxes
As more fully described in Note 9 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements, at December 31, 2002, we had tax
net operating loss carryforwards in various tax jurisdictions of
approximately $47.3 million. If unused, those carryforwards subject to expiration will expire over the years 2003 through 2022.
Although realization is not assured, we anticipate taxable income
in future years will allow us to fully utilize the carryforwards that
have not had a valuation allowance placed against them.

Outlook

and other factors we believe are appropriate under the circumstances. Such statements are subject to various risks and
uncertainties related to the oil and gas industry, business conditions, international markets, international political climates
and other factors that are beyond our control. We caution you
that these statements are not guarantees of future performance. Accordingly, our actual outcomes and results may differ
materially from what we express or forecast in the forwardlooking statements. Should one or more of these risks or
uncertainties materialize, or should our underlying assumptions
prove incorrect, our actual results may vary materially from
those expected, estimated or projected.
ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE

AND

We have established internal earnings targets that are based

QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES

on current market conditions. Based on industry surveys, we

MARKET RISK

ABOUT

anticipate North American spending by our clients to increase
slightly from 2002 levels in response to increasing oilfield
activity. However, we believe that the activity levels outside of
North America will remain constant compared to 2002 levels.
We expect to meet ongoing working capital and capital expenditure requirements from a combination of cash on hand, cash
flow from operations and available borrowings under our revolving Credit Facility.

Market Risk
We are exposed to market risk, which is the potential loss
arising from adverse changes in market prices and rates. We
do not enter, or intend to enter, into derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes. We do not believe
that our exposure to market risks, which are primarily related
to (i) interest rate changes and (ii) fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, (although we have experienced losses

Forward-Looking Statements
This discussion contains forward-looking statements within

from time-to-time) are material.
During 1999, we issued fixed rate Senior Notes denomi-

the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and

nated in U.S. dollars. The proceeds were used to pay off variable

Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, concern-

rate term loans that significantly reduced our exposure to

ing among other things, our expected revenues, expenses and

upward interest rate changes. This section should be read in

profit, our prospects, and business strategies and development,

conjunction with Note 8 — “Long-Term Debt and Capital Lease

all of which are subject to certain risks, uncertainties and

Obligations” and Note 12 — “Concentration of Credit Risk” of

assumptions. When used in this document, words such as

the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

“anticipate” “believe”, “expect”, “plan”, “intend”, “estimate”,
“project”, “budget”, “forecast”, “will”, “should”, “could”, “may”,
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Interest Rate Risk

Credit Risk

We are exposed to interest rate risk on our Credit Facility

Our financial instruments that potentially subject us to concen-

debt, which carries a variable interest rate. At December 31,

trations of credit risk consist primarily of cash and cash equiv-

2002, our variable rate debt outstanding of $13.0 million

alents and accounts receivable. Major banks or investment

approximated its fair value. A one percent change in the inter-

firms hold cash and cash equivalents such as deposits and

est rate would result in a change of approximately $130,000

temporary cash investments. Our trade receivables are with a

in interest expense on an annual basis. We attempt to balance

variety of domestic, international and national oil and gas com-

the benefit of variable rate debt that has inherent increased

panies. Management considers this credit risk to be limited

risk with fixed rate debt that has less market risk.

due to the creditworthiness and financial resources of these
financial institutions and companies.

Foreign Currency Risk
We operate in a number of international areas which exposes

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

us to foreign currency exchange rate risk. We do not hold or

SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

issue forward exchange contracts or other derivative instruments

For the financial statements and supplementary data required

for speculative purposes. (A foreign exchange contract is a

by this Item 8, see index to Consolidated Financial Statements

foreign currency transaction, defined as an agreement to

and Schedules at Item 15.

AND

exchange different currencies at a given date and at a specified
rate.) The most significant foreign currency issue in 2002 arose

ITEM 9. CHANGES

in connection with our operations in Venezuela. Our Venezuelan

DISAGREEMENTS

operation contributed approximately 3% of our revenues. Due

ACCOUNTING AND

to of the recent political and financial crisis in Venezuela, their

Not applicable.

IN AND

WITH

ACCOUNTANTS

ON

FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

currency, the Bolivar devalued by approximately 43% during the
year ended December 2002. We recognized a foreign currency
loss of approximately $1.8 million related to our operations and
financial position in this country during 2002.
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PART III

processed, summarized and reported within the time periods

Part III (Items 10 through 13) will be incorporated by reference

specified in the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission’s

pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Act

(the SEC) rules and forms. Disclosure Controls are also

of 1934. The Registrant expects to file a definitive proxy state-

designed to ensure that such information is accumulated and

ment with the SEC within 120 days after the close of the year

communicated to our management, including the CEO and CFO,

ended December 31, 2002.

as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Internal Controls are procedures designed to provide

ITEM 14. CONTROLS

AND

PROCEDURES

Quarterly Evaluation of the Company’s Disclosure
Controls and Internal Controls
Within the 90 days prior to the date of this Annual Report
on Form 10-K, we evaluated the effectiveness of the design

reasonable assurance that (1) our transactions are properly
authorized; (2) our assets are safeguarded against unauthorized or improper use; and (3) our transactions are properly
recorded and reported, all to permit the preparation of our
financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles.

and operation of our “disclosure controls and procedures”
(Disclosure Controls), and our “internal controls and proce-

Limitations on the Effectiveness of Controls

dures for financial reporting” (Internal Controls). This evaluation

Our management, including the CEO and CFO, does not expect

(the Controls Evaluation) was performed under the supervision

that our Disclosure Controls or our Internal Controls will pre-

and with the participation of management, including our Chief

vent all error and all fraud. A control system, no matter how

Executive Officer (“CEO”) and Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”).

well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, not
absolute, assurance that the control system’s objectives will be

CEO and CFO Certifications
Immediately following the Signatures section of this Annual
Report are the CEO and CFO certifications (the Rule 302
Certifications) required by Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002. This Controls and Procedures section of the
Annual Report includes the information concerning the Controls
Evaluation referred to in the Rule 302 Certifications and it
should be read in conjunction with the Rule 302 Certifications
for a more complete understanding of the topics presented.
Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley act
of 2002 has been filed as correspondence with the Securities
and Exchange Commission and is incorporated by reference
in this form 10-K.
Disclosure Controls and Internal Controls
Disclosure Controls are procedures designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed in our reports filed under
the Exchange Act, such as this Annual Report, is recorded,
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met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the
fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of
controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of
the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of
controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues
and instances of fraud, if any, within the company have been
detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that
judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur because of simple error or mistake. Controls
can also be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by management
override of the controls. The design of any system of controls
is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood
of future events, and there can be no assurance that any
design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all
potential future conditions. Over time, controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions or deterioration in
the degree of compliance with policies or procedures. Because

of the inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system,

trol does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that mis-

misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and may not

statements caused by error or fraud may occur in amounts

be detected.

that would be material in relation to the financial statements
and the risk that such misstatements would not be detected

Scope of the Controls Evaluation
The evaluation of our Disclosure Controls and our Internal
Controls included a review of the controls’ objectives and
design, the company’s implementation of the controls and the
effect of the controls on the information generated for use in
this Annual Report. In the course of the Controls Evaluation,
we sought to identify data errors, controls problems or acts of
fraud and confirm that appropriate corrective actions, including
process improvements, were being undertaken. This type of
evaluation is performed on a quarterly basis so that the conclusions of management, including the CEO and CFO, concerning
controls effectiveness can be reported in our Quarterly Reports
on Form 10-Q and Annual Report on Form 10-K. Our Internal

within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions. We also sought to deal
with other controls matters in the Controls Evaluation, and in
each case if a problem was identified, we considered what revision, improvement and/or correction to make in accordance
with our ongoing procedures.
As described below under “Changes in Disclosure Controls
and Internal Controls”, we have identified certain deficiencies in
our controls and procedures. However, we believe the corrective
actions we have taken and the additional procedures we have
performed, as described below in more detail, provide us with
reasonable assurance that the identified control weaknesses
have not limited the effectiveness of our controls and procedures.

Controls are also evaluated by other personnel in our finance
organization, as well as our independent auditors who evaluate

Changes in Disclosure Controls

them in connection with determining their auditing procedures

and Internal Controls

related to their report on our annual financial statements and

Management and the Audit Committee are aware of conditions

not to provide assurance on our Internal Controls. The overall

relating primarily to our operations primarily in Mexico and

goals of these various evaluation activities are to monitor our

Venezuela that are considered to be a “material weakness”

Disclosure Controls and our Internal Controls, and to modify

and “reportable conditions” in our Disclosure Controls and our

them as necessary. Our intent is to maintain the Disclosure

Internal Controls for the year ended December 31, 2002 under

Controls and the Internal Controls as dynamic systems that

standards established by the American Institute of Certified

change as conditions warrant.

Public Accountants. In particular, the aforementioned weak-

Among other matters, we sought in our evaluation to

nesses in both our Disclosure Controls and Internal Controls

determine whether there were any “significant deficiencies” or

pertain to the following areas, (i) revenue cycle process, includ-

“material weaknesses” in our Internal Controls, and whether

ing revenue recognition, calculation of deferred revenue and

we had identified any acts of fraud involving personnel with a

monitoring of past due accounts, (ii) the process surrounding

significant role in the our Internal Controls. In professional

accurate reconciliation of account balances and (iii) regular recon-

auditing literature, “significant deficiencies” are referred to as

ciliation of general ledger accounts to supporting documenta-

“reportable conditions,” which are control issues that could

tion. Management and the Audit Committee have taken actions

have a significant adverse effect on the ability to record,

with respect to the material weaknesses and significant deficien-

process, summarize and report financial data in the financial

cies, including (1) the replacement of the head of an operating

statements. Auditing literature defines “material weakness” as a

unit, the country manager, the country controller and the authori-

particularly serious reportable condition where the internal con-

zation of the hiring of five additional accounting personnel,
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(2) the expansion of our financial review and internal control

during 2003. We expect to install this software and common

function by two additional professional internal auditors,

set of Internal Controls for our operations in Venezuela,

(3) additional training (or re-training where necessary) of our

Australia, Thailand, The Netherlands, and certain other locations

personnel worldwide, and (4) the acceleration of the installation

in Europe. We expect to have, by the end of 2003, approxi-

effort of our company-wide financial accounting system.

mately 84% of our business activity on this software system

As part of our effort to have a common system of Internal

utilizing common business process and controls. As this system

Controls applicable to our operations world-wide, in 2001, we

is installed into these locations in 2003, we will implement a

began an implementation of an enterprise-wide general ledger

common set of Internal Controls through the new business

software system that included an Enterprise Resource Planning

processes and procedures.

(ERP) System for our manufacturing operations and budget and

Further, Management believes that the corrective actions,

planning modules, as well as new business processes and pro-

when taken, will provide us with reasonable assurance that

cedures to support the software designed to provide us with a

the identified issues will not limit the effectiveness of our

common set of Internal Controls in those locations where the

Disclosure Controls or Internal Controls. Management believes

new system is implemented. These changes are the result of

that we have successfully implemented procedures addressing

our normal business process to evaluate and upgrade or

the “material weakness” and “reportable conditions” in

replace our systems software and related business processes

our controls.

to support our evolving operational needs. At the end of 2001,
approximately 52% of our business activity (as expressed in
terms of consolidated revenues) was on this software system
utilizing common business process and controls, primarily in
the United States. In 2002, we installed this software and
common set of Internal Controls for our operations in Canada,
the United Kingdom, and Mexico. At the end of 2002, including
the new locations on our common system, we had approximately 62% of our business activity on this software system
utilizing common business process and controls. Further, we
expect to install this same software system and related new
business processes and procedures into additional locations
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Conclusions
Based upon the Controls Evaluation, our CEO and CFO have
concluded that, subject to the limitations and changes noted
above, our Disclosure Controls are effective to ensure that
material information relating to Core Laboratories and its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to management, including
the CEO and CFO, particularly during the period when our periodic reports are being prepared, and that our Internal Controls
are effective to provide reasonable assurance that our financial
statements are fairly presented in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles.

PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
AND

REPORTS

ON

FORM 8-K

(a) Financial Statements
The following reports, financial statements and schedules are filed herewith on the pages indicated:
Page
Report of Independent Accountants, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 33
Report of Independent Accountants, Arthur Andersen LLP. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 34
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2002 and 2001. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 35
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive
Income (Loss) for the Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 36
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
for the Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 37
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 38
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 39

Financial Statement Schedules
All schedules have been omitted because they are not applicable, not required under the instructions, or the information
requested is set forth in the consolidated financial statements or related notes hereto.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K
No reports on Form 8-K were filed during the quarter ended December 31, 2002.
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(c) Exhibits
The following exhibits are incorporated by reference to the filing indicated or are filed herewith.

Exhibit No.

Exhibit Title

Incorporated by
Reference
from the Following
Documents

3.1

— Articles of Association of the Company, as amended (including
English translation)

Form F-1, September 20, 1995

4.1

— Form of certificate representing Common Shares

Form 10-K, March 31, 1999

10.1

— Core Laboratories N.V. 1995 Long-Term Incentive Plan (as
amended and restated effective as of May 29, 1997)

Proxy Statement dated May 2,
1997 for Annual Meeting of
Shareholders

10.2

— Core Laboratories N.V. 1995 Nonemployee Director Stock Option Plan
(as amended and restated effective as of May 29, 1997)

Proxy Statement dated May 2,
1997 for Annual Meeting of
Shareholders

10.3

— Form of Registration Rights Agreement to be entered into by the Company
and certain of its shareholders, dated September 15, 1995

Form 10-Q, November 10, 1995

10.4

— Purchase and Sale Agreement between Core Holdings B.V. and
Western Atlas International, Inc., Western Atlas International Nigeria Ltd.,
Western Atlas de Venezuela, C.A., Western Atlas Canada Ltd. and
Core Laboratories Australia Pty. Ltd. dated as of September 30, 1994

Form F-1, September 20, 1995

10.5

— Form of Indemnification Agreement to be entered into by the Company
and certain of its directors and officers

Form F-1, September 20, 1995

10.6

— Indemnification Agreements, each dated as of October 20, 1995,
between the Company and each of its directors and executive officers

Form 10-Q, November 10,1995

10.7

— Amended and Restated Credit Agreement among Core Laboratories N.V.,
Core Laboratories, Inc., Core Laboratories (U.K.) Limited, Bankers Trust
Company, NationsBank, N.A. and the Bank Group, dated as of July 18, 1997

Form S-3, November 20, 1997

10.8

— Core Laboratories Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan effective as
of January 1, 1998

Form 10-K, March 31, 1998

10.9

— Core Laboratories Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan for
John D. Denson effective January 1, 1999

Form 10-Q, November 15, 1999

10.10 — Core Laboratories Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan for
Monty L. Davis effective January 1, 1999

Form 10-Q, November 15, 1999

10.11 — Amendment to Core Laboratories Supplemental Executive Retirement
Plan filed January 1, 1998, effective July 29, 1999

Form 10-Q, November 15, 1999

10.12 — Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement among
Core Laboratories N.V., Core Laboratories, Inc., Core Laboratories
(U.K.) Limited, Bankers Trust Company, Bank of America, N.A. and
the Bank Group, dated as of July 22, 1999

Form 10-Q, November 15, 1999

10.13 — Note and Guarantee Agreement by Core Laboratories, Inc. for
Guaranteed Senior Notes, Series A, and Guaranteed Senior Notes,
Series B, dated as of July 22, 1999

Form 10-Q, November 15, 1999

10.14 — First Amendment to Core Laboratories N.V. 1995 Long-Term Incentive
Plan (as amended and restated effective as of May 29, 1997)

Form 10-K, March 15, 2001
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Exhibit No.

Exhibit Title

Incorporated by
Reference
from the Following
Documents

10.15 — Second Amendment to Core Laboratories N.V. 1995 Nonemployee
Director Stock Option Plan (as amended and restated effective as
of May 29, 1997)

Form 10-K, March 15, 2001

10.16 — Form of Restated Employment Agreement between Core Laboratories
N.V. and David Michael Demshur dated as of December 31, 2001

Form 10-K, March 25, 2001

10.17 — Form of Restated Employment Agreement between Core Laboratories
N.V. and Richard Lucas Bergmark dated as of December 31, 2001

Form 10-K, March 25, 2001

10.18 — Form of Restated Employment Agreement between Core Laboratories
N.V. and John David Denson dated as of December 31, 2001

Form 10-K, March 25, 2001

10.19 — Form of Restated Employment Agreement between Core Laboratories
N.V. and Monty Lee Davis dated as of December 31, 2001

Form 10-K, March 25, 2001

10.20 — Form of Executive Share Matching Restricted Share Agreement between
Core Laboratories N.V. and David Demshur dated as of June 1, 2002

Filed Herewith

10.21 — Form of Executive Share Matching Restricted Share Agreement between
Core Laboratories N.V. and Richard Bergmark dated as of June 1, 2002

Filed Herewith

10.22 — Form of Executive Share Matching Restricted Share Agreement between
Core Laboratories N.V. and John Denson dated as of June 1, 2002

Filed Herewith

10.23 — Form of Executive Share Matching Restricted Share Agreement between
Core Laboratories N.V. and Monty Davis dated as of June 1, 2002

Filed Herewith

21.1

— Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Filed Herewith

23.1

— Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Filed Herewith
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

CORE LABORATORIES N.V.
By: Core Laboratories International B.V.

Date: April 4, 2003

By:

/s/ JACOBUS SCHOUTEN
Jacobus Schouten
Supervisory Director

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities indicated, on the 4th day of April, 2003.

Signature

Title

/s/ DAVID M. DEMSHUR

President, Chief Executive Officer,

David M. Demshur

Chairman and Supervisory Director

/s/ RICHARD L. BERGMARK

Executive Vice President,

Richard L. Bergmark

Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer
and Supervisory Director

/s/ C. BRIG MILLER

Chief Accounting Officer

C. Brig Miller

/s/ JOSEPH R. PERNA

Supervisory Director

Joseph R. Perna

/s/ JACOBUS SCHOUTEN

Supervisory Director

Jacobus Schouten

/s/ RENE R. JOYCE

Supervisory Director

Rene R. Joyce

/s/ D. JOHN OGREN

Supervisory Director

D. John Ogren

/s/ ALEXANDER VRIESENDORP
Alexander Vriesendorp
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Supervisory Director

CERTIFICATION
I, David M. Demshur, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Core Laboratories N.V.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for,
the periods presented in this annual report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and we have:
a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this annual report is being prepared;
b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within 90 days prior to
the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and
c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures based
on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;
5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):
a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect the registrant’s
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for the registrant’s auditors any material
weaknesses in internal controls; and
b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal controls; and
6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether or not there were significant
changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date
of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses.

Date: April 4, 2003

By:

/s/ David M. Demshur
David M. Demshur
Chief Executive Officer
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I, Richard L. Bergmark, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Core Laboratories N.V.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this annual report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and we have:
a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this annual report is being prepared;
b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within 90 days prior to
the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and
c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures based
on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;
5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):
a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect the registrant’s
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for the registrant’s auditors any material
weaknesses in internal controls; and
b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal controls; and
6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether or not there were significant
changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our
most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: April 4, 2003
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By:

/s/ Richard L. Bergmark
Richard L. Bergmark
Chief Financial Officer

Report of Independent Accountants
To the Supervisory Board of Directors and Shareholders of Core Laboratories N.V.:
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2002 and the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income, of changes in shareholders’ equity and of cash flows present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Core Laboratories N.V. (a Netherlands corporation). and its subsidiaries (the Company) as of
December 31, 2002 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management and evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. The Company’s
consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2001 and for each of the two years in the period ended December 31,
2001, prior to the revision described in Note 7 of the consolidated financial statements, were audited by other independent
accountants who have ceased operations. Those independent accountants expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial
statements in their report dated March 21, 2002.
As discussed in Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of accounting for goodwill
effective January 1, 2002, in accordance with SFAS No. 142.
As discussed above, the Company’s consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2001 and for each of the two
years in the period ended December 31, 2001, were audited by other independent accountants who have ceased operations. As
described in Note 7, those financial statements have been revised to include the transitional disclosures required by Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, which was adopted by the Company as of
January 1, 2002. We audited the transitional disclosures for 2001 and 2000 included in Note 7. In our opinion, the transitional
disclosures for 2001 and 2000 in Note 7 are appropriate. However, we were not engaged to audit, review, or apply any procedures to the 2001 or 2000 financial statement of the Company other than with respect to such disclosures and, accordingly,
we do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on the 2001 or 2000 financial statements taken as a whole.
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Houston, Texas
April 2, 2003
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THE FOLLOWING IS A COPY OF A REPORT PREVIOUSLY ISSUED BY ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP (ANDERSEN). THIS REPORT HAS
NOT BEEN REISSUED BY ANDERSEN AND ANDERSEN IS UNABLE CONSENT TO THE INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE OF THIS
REPORT (AS INCLUDED IN THIS FORM 10-K) INTO ANY OF THE COMPANY’S REGISTRATION STATEMENTS.
AS DISCUSSED IN NOTE 7, THE COMPANY HAS REVISED ITS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2001 AND 2000 TO INCLUDE THE TRANSITIONAL DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS NO. 142, GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS. THE ANDERSEN REPORT DOES NOT EXTEND TO THESE CHANGES.
THE REVISIONS TO THE 2001 AND 2002 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATED TO THESE TRANSITIONAL DISCLOSURES WERE
REPORTED ON BY PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP, AS STATED IN THEIR REPORT APPEARING HEREIN.

Report of Independent Public Accountants
To The Supervisory Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Core Laboratories N.V.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Core Laboratories N.V. (a Netherlands corporation) and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Core
Laboratories N.V. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the results of their operations and their cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001, in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States.

Arthur Andersen LLP

Houston, Texas
March 21, 2002
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2002 and 2001
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

2002
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $8,853 and
$7,829 at 2002 and 2001, respectively
Inventories, net
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Deferred tax asset
Total current assets
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, net
INTANGIBLES, net
GOODWILL, net
OTHER ASSETS
Total assets
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Current maturities of long-term debt and capital lease obligations
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related costs
Taxes other than payroll and income
Unearned revenues
Income taxes payable
Accrued interest
Other accrued expenses
Total current liabilities
LONG-TERM DEBT AND CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS
DEFERRED COMPENSATION
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY
OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
MINORITY INTEREST
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (NOTE 14)
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
Preference shares, EUR 0.01 par value; 3,000,000 shares authorized, none issued or outstanding
Common shares, EUR 0.01 par value; 100,000,000 shares authorized, 33,275,910 issued
and 32,415,510 outstanding at 2002 and 33,204,571 issued and outstanding at 2001
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Treasury shares (at cost), 860,400 at 2002
Total shareholders’ equity
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

$

14,876

2001

$

14,456

100,602
34,532
13,671
11,992
175,673

104,933
41,109
9,728
9,123
179,349

95,452
8,913
133,446
7,669
$ 421,153

97,615
7,561
143,696
11,279
$ 439,500

$

1,145
25,407
9,662
3,224
1,709
—
2,891
6,046
50,084

$

506
19,721
6,808
4,141
3,198
893
3,017
1,723
40,007

88,035
3,544
14,461
6,539
344

95,121
2,369
13,350
12,232
815

—

—

546
187,364
79,247
(9,011)
258,146
$ 421,153

546
186,751
88,309
—
275,606
$ 439,500

The accompaning notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Operations and
Comprehensive Income (Loss)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000
(In thousands, except per share data)

2002
REVENUES:
Services
Sales
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of services
Cost of sales
General and administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Goodwill amortization
Write-offs and other charges
Restructuring charges
Other (income) expense, net
OPERATING INCOME
INTEREST EXPENSE
OPERATING INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE
INCOME TAX EXPENSE
INCOME BEFORE CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGE IN
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE
CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE
NET INCOME (LOSS)
PER SHARE INFORMATION:
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE BEFORE CUMULATIVE
EFFECT OF CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE
CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE
BASIC EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE
WEIGHTED AVERAGE BASIC COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING
DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE BEFORE CUMULATIVE EFFECT
OF CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE
CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE
DILUTED EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE
WEIGHTED AVERAGE DILUTED COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING
The accompaning notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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2001

2000

$ 302,098
62,650
364,748

$ 304,568
72,004
376,572

$ 263,519
77,414
340,933

240,847
60,461
20,183
20,097
—
—
—
2,402
20,758
7,603
13,155
5,525

232,683
60,625
15,929
18,361
4,174
5,750
2,975
(502)
36,577
7,921
28,656
8,024

212,553
62,252
13,540
15,231
4,130
—
—
(1,163)
34,390
8,314
26,076
8,246

20,632
—
20,632

17,830
—
17,830

7,630
(16,692)
$ (9,062)

$

$

0.23
(0.50)
(0.27)
33,174

$

0.23
(0.50)
(0.27)
33,174

$

$

$
$

$

$

0.62
—
0.62
33,075

0.60
—
0.60
34,272

$

$
$

$
$

0.55
—
0.55
32,388

0.53
—
0.53
33,539

Consolidated Statements of
Changes in Shareholders' Equity
For the Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000
(In thousands, except per share data)

Common Shares
Number of
Shares
Capital
BALANCE, December 31, 1999
(as previously reported)
EXERCISE OF
OVER-ALLOTMENT OPTION
ADJUSTMENT FOR
POOLING OF INTEREST
STOCK OPTIONS EXERCISED
NET INCOME
BALANCE, December 31, 2000
STOCK OPTIONS EXERCISED
SHARES ISSUED FOR
MINORITY INTEREST
NET INCOME
BALANCE, December 31, 2001
STOCK OPTIONS EXERCISED
REPURCHASES OF COMMON SHARES
NET LOSS
BALANCE, December 31, 2002

Additional
Paid-In
Capital

Retained
Earnings

527

$ 162,354

$ 49,847

696,748

9

17,239

30,516
305,660
—
32,814,018
290,553

—
4
—
540
4

100,000
—
33,204,571
71,339
—
—
33,275,910

2
—
546
—
—
—
546

31,781,094

$

$

Treasury
Stock,
at cost
$

Total
Shareholders’
Equity

—

$ 212,728

—

—

17,248

118
3,137
—
182,848
2,956

(1,322)
—
19,152
67,677
—

—
—
—

(1,204)
3,141
19,152
251,065

947
—
186,751
613
—
—
$187,364

—
20,632
88,309
—
—
(9,062)
$ 79,247

—
—
—
—
—
(9,011)
—
$ (9,011)

2,960
949
20,632
275,606
613
(9,011)
(9,062)
$258,146

The accompaning notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000
(In thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle
Provision for doubtful accounts
Equity earnings (losses) of affiliates
Minority interest
Stock compensation
Depreciation and amortization
Goodwill amortization
Debt issuance costs amortization
Loss (gain) on sale of fixed assets
Deferred income taxes
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects of acquisitions:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Net deferred tax
Other assets
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Other long-term liabilities
Other
Net cash provided by operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Capital expenditures
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired
Proceeds from sale of assets
Other
Net cash used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net proceeds from exercise of over-allotment option
Repayment of debt
Proceeds from debt borrowings
Capital lease obligations, net
Stock options exercised
Repurchase of common shares
Other
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash payments for interest
Cash payments for income taxes
The accompaning notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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2002

2001

2000

$ (9,062)

$ 20,632

$ 17,830

16,692
4,540
102
(471)
472
20,097
—
247
1,083
(1,758)

—
251
(325)
183
—
18,361
4,174
544
(153)
(17)

—
1,050
260
598
—
15,231
4,130
564
(627)
(1,243)

(5,304)
6,577
(3,943)
—
(511)
5,686
6,536
—
—
40,983

2,654
(2,190)
(2,456)
6,961
—
(6,798)
(9,356)
(1,542)
(2,061)
28,862

(26,890)
(8,542)
3,268
(1,077)
—
5,025
(364)
(2,661)
1,271
7,823

(19,136)
(7,991)
1,789
—
(25,338)

(29,045)
(12,810)
1,561
(548)
(40,842)

(33,352)
—
4,135
299
(28,918)

—
(23,521)
16,703
(9)
613
(9,011)
—
(15,225)
420
14,456
$ 14,876

—
(8,664)
20,021
(211)
2,960
—
(189)
13,917
1,937
12,519
$ 14,456

17,248
(23,992)
20,231
(1,750)
3,141
—
(96)
14,782
(6,313)
18,832
$ 12,519

$ 7,420
$ 9,813

$
$

$
$

7,022
7,900

7,003
3,368

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

DECEMBER 31, 2002

Principles of Consolidation

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include

Core Laboratories N.V., a Netherlands corporation, and its

the accounts of Core Laboratories and its subsidiaries and have

wholly owned subsidiaries (“Core Laboratories”, “we”, “our” or

been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting

“us”) is one of the world’s leading providers of proprietary and

principles (“GAAP”) in the United States of America (“U.S.”). All

patented reservoir description, production enhancement and

significant intercompany transactions and balances have been

reservoir management services. These services enable our

eliminated in consolidation. The equity method of accounting is

clients to improve reservoir performance and increase oil and

used for all investments in which we have less than a majority

gas recovery from their producing fields. We provide our serv-

interest and do not exercise control. Minority interest has been

ices to the world’s major, national and independent oil compa-

recorded to reflect outside ownership attributable to consolidat-

nies. We currently operate over 70 offices in more than 50

ed subsidiaries that are less than 100% owned. Our consolidat-

countries.

ed financial statements at December 31, 2000 and for the two

Our business units have been aggregated into three com-

years in the period ended December 31, 2000 have been

plementary segments, which provide products and services for

restated for all prior periods presented to include the financial

improving reservoir performance and increasing oil and gas

position and results of operations of our acquisitions accounted

recovery from new and existing fields.

for using the pooling-of-interests method of accounting. See

• Reservoir Description: Encompasses the characteriza-

Note 3 for additional information regarding acquisitions.

tion of petroleum reservoir rock, fluid and gas samples.
We provide analytical and field services to characterize
properties of crude oil and petroleum products to the oil
and gas industry.
• Production Enhancement: Includes products and services
relating to reservoir well completions, perforations,
stimulations and production. We provide integrated services to evaluate the effectiveness of well completions
and to develop solutions aimed at increasing the effectiveness of enhanced oil recovery projects.
• Reservoir Management: Combines and integrates information from reservoir description and production enhancement services to increase production and improve recovery

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S.
GAAP requires management to make certain estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. We evaluate our estimates on an ongoing basis and base these estimates on our historical experience as well as on various other
assumptions that we believe are reasonable in a given circumstance. Actual results could differ from those estimates under
different assumptions or conditions.

of oil and gas from our clients’ reservoirs.
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Critical estimates used by management include:

Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to

• allowance for doubtful accounts;

expense as incurred and major renewals and improvements are

• inventory valuation allowances;

capitalized. Cost and accumulated depreciation applicable to

• depreciation and amortization;

assets retired or sold are removed from the accounts, and any

• income taxes; and

resulting gain or loss is included in operations. We incurred

• long-lived assets, intangibles and goodwill.

and expensed approximately $2,693,000, $3,386,000 and
$3,100,000 in repair and maintenance costs for the years

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

In addition to net income, comprehensive income is comprised of “other comprehensive income (loss)” which includes

Long-lived Assets

all charges and credits to equity that are not the result of

U.S. GAAP requires that long-lived assets to be held and used,

transactions with owners. There were no other comprehensive

including intangibles, be reviewed for impairment whenever

income items for the three years ended December 31, 2002,

changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may

2001 and 2000.

not be recoverable. The carrying value is considered impaired
when anticipated, separately identifiable, undiscounted cash

Cash and Cash Equivalents

flows from such asset are less than the carrying value of the

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in banks and all highly

asset. In that event, a loss is recognized based on the amount

liquid debt instruments with an original maturity of three

by which the carrying value exceeds the fair value of the long-

months or less when purchased.

lived asset.

Inventories

Intangibles and Goodwill

Inventories consist of manufactured goods, materials and sup-

Intangibles include patents, trademarks, and trade names.

plies used for sales or services to customers. Inventories are

Intangibles are amortized using the straight-line method based

stated at the lower of average cost or estimated net realizable

on the estimated useful life of the related intangible.

value, and are reflected net of valuation reserves.
Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets
Prepaid expenses and other current assets is comprised

Goodwill represents the excess of purchase price over the
fair value of the net assets acquired in acquisitions accounted
for under the purchase method of accounting.
In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board

primarily of prepaid insurance and rents.

(“FASB”) issued two statements, Statement of Financial
Property, Plant and Equipment

Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) 141, “Business Combinations”,

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Allowances

and SFAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, that

for depreciation and amortization are calculated using the

amend Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 16,

straight-line method based on the estimated useful life of the

“Business Combinations”, and supersede APB Opinion No. 17,

related assets as follows:

“Intangible Assets.” SFAS 141 eliminates the pooling-of-interests method of accounting for business combinations and

Buildings and leasehold improvements
Machinery and equipment

3 – 40 years
3 – 10 years

establishes the purchase method of accounting as the only
acceptable method for all business combinations initiated after
June 30, 2001. This statement requires that goodwill resulting
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from a business combination after June 30, 2001 be recog-

Income Taxes

nized as an asset but not amortized, while goodwill existing at

We recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expect-

June 30, 2001 was amortized through December 31, 2001.

ed future tax consequences of events that have been included

Beginning January 1, 2002, we no longer amortize goodwill but

in the consolidated financial statements or tax returns.

will test for impairment annually or more frequently if circum-

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based

stances indicate a potential impairment. We determined our

on the difference between the financial statement and the tax

reporting unit level to be our operating units. Using the dis-

basis of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect

counted cash flow method under the requirements of SFAS 142,

for the year in which the asset is recovered or the liability

we have reflected impairment of goodwill of approximately

is settled.

$16.7 million related to our Reservoir Management Segment
as a result of adoption of SFAS 142 on January 1, 2002. This
impairment was recorded in the first quarter of 2002 and is
reflected in the statement of operations as a cumulative effect
of change in accounting principle. The cessation of goodwill
amortization under the guidelines will result in a reduction of
approximately $4.2 million in annual operating expenses,
assuming no additional impairment of goodwill.

Revenue Recognition
Revenues are recognized as services are completed or as
product title is transferred. All advance client payments are
classified as unearned revenues until services are earned or
product title is transferred. We recognize revenue consistent
with the guidance set forth in the Securities and Exchange
Commission’s (“SEC’s”) Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101,
(“SAB 101”), as amended. To properly recognize revenue we

Other Assets

ensure that we follow these principles: (i) persuasive evidence

Other assets include $2,179,000 of assets held for sale. We

an arrangement exists; (ii) delivery has occurred or services

expect to dispose of these assets in 2003. Also included are

rendered; (iii) the fee is fixed and determinable; and (iv) collect-

investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries whose operations

ibility is reasonably assured. Revenues from long-term con-

are in-line with those of our core businesses. These entities

tracts are recorded as services are rendered in proportion to

are not considered special purpose entities nor do we have

the work performed. All known or anticipated losses on con-

special off-balance sheet arrangements through these entities.

tracts are provided for currently. Training and consulting serv-

We received cash dividends from these unconsolidated affili-

ice revenues are recognized as the services are performed.

ates of approximately $266,000 in 2002. These investments

Sales of perpetual software licenses, net of deferred main-

are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. We

tenance fees, are recorded as revenue once the criteria of

hold a 50% investment in China Corelab Limited valued at

Statement of Position 98-9, “Modification of SOP 97-2,

$250,000, which is accounted for using the cost method of

Software Revenue Recognition With Respect to Certain

accounting. In addition, in 2002 we acquired an investment,

Transactions” are successfully met. We primarily license our

held at cost, valued at approximately $266,000. These entities

software products under perpetual licenses. Customer support

are not consolidated due to the limited influence we have in

agreements are recorded as unearned revenues and recognized

making management decisions. Investments were $1,115,000

as revenue ratably over the contract period, generally one year.

and $951,000 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. In addition, cash surrender value of life insurance of
$2,119,000 and other items of $2,256,000 are also included
in other assets.
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Foreign Currencies

plans at fair value as determined by generally recognized option

Our functional currency is the U.S. dollar. Accordingly, foreign

pricing models such as the Black-Scholes or the Binomial

entities remeasure monetary assets and liabilities to U.S. dollars

model. We have adopted the disclosure-only provisions of

at year-end exchange rates, while non-monetary items are

SFAS 123. We apply APB Opinion 25, “Accounting for Stock

remeasured at historical rates. Revenues and expenses are

Issued to Employees”, which does not require compensation

remeasured at the applicable month-end rate, except for

costs to be recorded on options which have exercise prices

depreciation and amortization and certain components of cost of

at least equal to the market value of the stock on the date of

sales, which are remeasured at historical rates. For the years

grant. Accordingly, we have not recognized compensation cost

ended December 31, 2002, we incurred remeasurement loss-

for our stock-based plans. We have, however, included option

es of $2,678,000. Such amounts have been included in “Other

shares in the fully diluted shares outstanding calculation that

(income) expense, net” of the accompanying Consolidated

is used to determine fully diluted earnings per share. If we had

Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income (loss).

accounted for our stock-based compensation plans using the
fair value recognition provision of SFAS 123, our net income

Stock-Based Compensation
SFAS 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”,
encourages, but does not require, companies to record

and diluted earnings per share would have been reduced to
the pro forma amounts as follows (in thousands, except per
share data):

compensation cost for employee stock-based compensation

Year Ended December 31,
2002
Net income (loss):
As reported
Less: stock-based compensation expense determined under fair value method
Pro forma
Basic earnings (loss) per share:
As reported
Pro forma
Diluted earnings (loss) per share:
As reported
Pro forma
Weighted-average fair value of options granted

$

2001

(9,062)
4,766
$ (13,828)

$

$
$

2000
$

$

20,632
7,595
13,037

$

17,830
8,384
9,446

(0.27)
(0.42)

$
$

0.62
0.39

$
$

0.55
0.29

$

(0.27)

$

0.60

$

0.53

$

(0.42)

$

0.38

$

0.28

$

11.39

$

13.34

$

19.46

See Note 10 for additional information. The pro forma value of options at the date of grant was estimated using the BlackScholes option-pricing model with the following assumptions:

Risk free interest rate
Expected volatility
Expected lives (in years)
Expected dividend yield
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2002
4%
40%
7
0%

2001
5%
63%
7
0%

2000
5%
66%
8
0%

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148,

own. Research and development expenditures are charged to

“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and

expense as incurred. We intend to continue committing sub-

Disclosure”. This Statement amends SFAS No. 123, “Accounting

stantial financial resources and effort to the development and

for Stock-Based Compensation”, to provide alternative methods

acquisition of new products and services. Over the years, we

of transition to SFAS No. 123’s fair value method of account-

have made a number of technological advances, including the

ing for stock-based employee compensation. This statement

development of key technologies utilized in our operations.

also amends the disclosure provision of SFAS No. 123 and

Substantially all of the new technologies have resulted from

APB No. 28, “Interim Financial Reporting”, to require disclosure

requests and guidance from our clients, particularly major oil

in the summary of significant accounting policies of the effects

companies. While we have acquired many of our new technolo-

of an entity’s accounting policy with respect to stock-based

gies, we incur expenses relating to our ongoing research and

employee compensation on reported net income and earnings

development program.

per share in annual and interim financial statements.
Earnings Per Share
Research and Development

Basic earnings per common share amounts were computed by

The market for our products and services is characterized by

dividing net income available to common shareholders by the

changing technology and frequent product introduction. As a

weighted average number of common shares outstanding dur-

result, our success is dependent upon our ability to develop or

ing the period. Diluted earnings per share reflect the net addi-

acquire new products and services on a cost-effective basis

tional shares, based on the treasury stock method, which

and to introduce them into the marketplace in a timely manner.

would be issued if all dilutive stock options outstanding were

Many of our acquisitions have allowed us to obtain the benefits

exercised.

of the acquired company’s research and development projects

The following table summarizes the calculation of weighted

without the significant costs that would have been incurred if

average common shares outstanding used in the computation

we had attempted to develop the products and services on our

of earnings per share (in thousands):

Weighted average basic common shares outstanding
Effect of dilutive stock options1
Weighted average diluted common shares outstanding

2002
33,174
—
33,174

2001
33,075
1,197
34,272

2000
32,388
1,151
33,539

1) Options of 3,971,659 and restricted stock of 132,852 (Note 10) were not included in the computation of diluted EPS because they are antidilutive for the year
ended December 31, 2002. Options totaling 705,081 and 14,676 were not included in the computation of diluted EPS because they are antidilutive for the year
ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
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Treasury Shares

accounting and reporting for obligations associated with the

We enacted a share repurchase program approved by share-

retirement of long-lived assets and the associated asset retire-

holders at our annual meeting in May 2002. The program

ment costs. SFAS 143 requires that the fair value of a liability

authorized the purchase of up to 10% of our outstanding shares

associated with an asset retirement be recognized in the peri-

through November 29, 2003. The repurchase of shares is at

od in which it is incurred if a reasonable estimate of fair value

the discretion of management and takes place in the open

can be made. The associated retirement costs are capitalized

market. We repurchased approximately 860,400 shares for

as part of the carrying amount of the long-lived asset and sub-

an aggregate purchase price of $9.0 million during 2002. We

sequently depreciated over the life of the asset. SFAS 143 will

may use these shares to finance future acquisitions.

be effective for fiscal years beginning after December 31,
2002. We do not expect SFAS 143 to have a material adverse

Recent Pronouncements
In June 2001, the FASB issued two statements, SFAS 141,
“Business Combinations”, and SFAS 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets”, that amend Accounting Principles Board
(“APB”) Opinion No. 16, “Business Combinations”, and supersede
APB Opinion No. 17, “Intangible Assets.” SFAS 141 eliminates
the pooling-of-interests method of accounting for business
combinations and establishes the purchase method of accounting as the only acceptable method on all business combinations
initiated after June 30, 2001. Goodwill resulting from a business
combination after June 30, 2001 is to be recognized as an
asset but not amortized, while goodwill existing at June 30,
2001 was amortized through December 31, 2001. As a result
of adoption of SFAS 142, beginning January 1, 2002, we no
longer amortize goodwill but will test for impairment annually
or more frequently if circumstances indicate a potential impairment. Any resulting impairment loss could result in a material
adverse effect on our financial position and results of operations. Upon adoption, in the first quarter of 2002, we recorded
an impairment of goodwill of approximately $16.7 million related to our Reservoir Management segment, which is reflected
in the consolidated statement of operations as a cumulative
effect of change in accounting principle. The cessation of goodwill amortization under the guidelines resulted in a reduction
of approximately $4.2 million in annual operating expenses,
assuming no additional impairment of goodwill.
In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS 143, “Accounting for
Asset Retirement Obligations.” SFAS 143 addresses financial
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effect upon our financial position or results of operations.
In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS 144, “Accounting
for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” SFAS 144
addresses the financial accounting and reporting for the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets. SFAS 144 supersedes
SFAS 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived
Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed of.” SFAS 144
provides updated guidance for recognition and measurement of
an impairment loss for certain types of long-lived assets and
modifies the accounting and reporting of discontinued operations. SFAS 144 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 31, 2001. The adoption of SFAS 144 did not
have a material adverse effect upon our financial position or
results of operations.
In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, “Rescission
of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment of FASB
Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections.” Due to the
nature of our business, FASB 44, 64 and Amendment of FASB 13
are not applicable. SFAS 145 eliminates SFAS No. 4
“Reporting Gains and Losses from Extinguishment of Debt” and
states that gains and losses from extinguishment of debt
should be classified as extraordinary items only if they meet
the criteria in APB Opinion No. 30 “Reporting the Results of
Operations-Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a
Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently
Occurring Events and Transactions”. APB Opinion No. 30
defines extraordinary items as events and transactions that
are distinguished by their unusual nature and by the infrequency

of their occurrence. The provisions of SFAS 145 related to the

measurement provisions of FIN 45 should be applied on a

classification of gains or losses attributable to debt extinguish-

prospective basis for guarantees issued or modified after

ments are effective for fiscal years beginning after May 15,

December 31, 2002. The disclosure requirements of FIN 45

2002. We do not expect SFAS 145 to have a material adverse

are effective for financial statements of both interim and annual

effect upon our financial position or results of operations.

periods ending after December 31, 2002. The adoption of FIN 45

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting
for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.” SFAS No.
146 requires companies to recognize costs associated with

is not expected to have a material impact on our consolidated
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
In January 2003 the FASB FIN No. 46, “Consolidation of

exit or disposal activities when they are incurred rather that at

Variable Interest Entities,” which addresses the consolidation

the date of commitment to an exit or disposal plan. We will

of variable interest entities (VIEs”) by business enterprises

adopt SFAS 146 for all exit or disposal activities initiated after

that are the primary beneficiaries. A VIE is an entity that does

December 31, 2002. We do not expect SFAS 146 to have a

not have sufficient equity investment at risk to permit it to

material adverse effect upon our financial position or results

finance its activities without additional subordinated financial

of operations.

support, or whose equity investors lack the characteristics of

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148,

a controlling financial interest. The primary beneficiary of a VIE

“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and

is the enterprise that has the majority of the risks or rewards

Disclosure”. This Statement amends SFAS No. 123,

associated with the VIE. The consolidation requirements of

“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”, to provide alter-

FIN 46 apply immediately to VIEs created after January 31,

native methods of transition to SFAS No. 123’s fair value

2003. For VIEs created at an earlier date, the consolidation

method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation.

requirements apply in the first fiscal year or interim period

This statement also amends the disclosure provision of SFAS

beginning after June 15, 2003. Certain disclosure requirements

No. 123 and APB No. 28, “Interim Financial Reporting”, to

apply in all financial statements issued after January 31, 2003,

require disclosure in the summary of significant accounting

regardless of when the VIE was established. Based on current

policies of the effects of an entity’s accounting policy with

information, we believe we have no material interests in VIEs

respect to stock-based employee compensation on reported

that will require disclosure or consolidation under FIN 46.

net income and earnings per share in annual and interim financial
statements, which we have adopted as of December 31,
2002. We do not expect the remaining provisions of SFAS 148
to have a material adverse effect upon our financial position
or results of operations.
In November 2002 the FASB issued Interpretation (“FIN”)
No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements,
Including Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others.” FIN 45
requires that upon issuance of certain types of guarantees, a
guarantor recognize and account for the fair value of the guarantee as a liability. FIN 45 contains exclusions to this requirement, including the exclusion of a parent’s guarantee of its
subsidiaries’ debt to a third party. The initial recognition and

3. ACQUISITIONS
2002 Acquisitions
On July 1, 2002, we acquired certain assets of Advanced Data
Solutions (“ADS”) for approximately $8.0 million in cash. The
addition of the ADS assets strengthens the Reservoir Management segment by providing additional depth-imaging and velocity
modeling services. The transaction resulted in an increase in
goodwill of approximately $5.7 million. In accordance with
SFAS 142, goodwill relating to this purchase will not be
amortized. Additional purchase price consideration may be
due dependent upon the outcome of certain contingent
targets included within the purchase agreement; the maximum

45

CORE LABORATORIES N.V. FORM 10-K
additional consideration would be $8.0 million. Any such con-

was accounted for using the pooling-of-interests method of

sideration would subsequently result in an adjustment to good-

accounting. Accordingly, our consolidated financial statements

will. Proforma financial information is not presented, as the his-

have been restated for all periods prior to the date of acquisi-

torical results of ADS are not material to the consolidated

tion to include the financial position and results of operations

financial position or results of operations.

of PROMORE.

The allocation of the purchase price and a reconciliation of
the cash used for this purchase is as follows (in thousands):
Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities:
Working Capital
Intangible Assets
Goodwill
Net purchase price

2000 Acquisitions
On December 20, 2000, we acquired all of the outstanding

$

$

980
1,280
5,731
7,991

shares of Core Petrophysics, Inc. (“CPI”), a privately held company based in Houston, Texas. CPI is engaged in the petrophysical characterization of partially consolidated and unconsolidated reservoirs that make up the majority of deepwater reservoirs

There were no amounts identified as research and develop-

around the world. We issued approximately 516,000 shares

ment assets that required write-off at the date of acquisition

in a share-for-share exchange. The transaction was accounted

in accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 4, Applicability of

for using the pooling-of-interests method of accounting.

FASB Statement No. 2 to Business Combination Accounted for

Accordingly, our consolidated financial statements have been

by the Purchase Method. The acquired intangible assets have a

restated for all periods prior to the date of acquisition to

weighted-average useful life of approximately four years and

include the financial position and results of operations of CPI.

include non-compete agreements, customer contracts and

On June 20, 2000, we acquired all of the outstanding

employment contracts. The goodwill was assigned to the

shares of Production Enhancement Corporation (“PENCOR”), a

Reservoir Management segment and is expected to be fully

privately held company based in Broussard, Louisiana. PENCOR

deductible for tax purposes.

provides fluid phase behavior services used to characterize
crude oils, natural gases and other reservoir fluids. We issued

2001 Acquisitions

approximately 275,000 shares in exchange for all of the out-

On August 1, 2001, we acquired all of the assets of Tesco

standing shares of PENCOR and assumed approximately $2.5

Corporation’s Gris Gun (“Gris Gun”) business for approximately

million in debt. The transaction was accounted for using the

$12.8 million. Gris Gun supplies wellbore perforating gun sys-

pooling-of-interests method of accounting. Accordingly, our

tems and other related completion products primarily to the

consolidated financial statements have been restated for all

Canadian market. The transaction was accounted for using the

periods prior to the date of acquisition to include the financial

purchase method of accounting and resulted in an increase

position and results of operations of PENCOR.

in goodwill of approximately $6.1 million. In accordance with
SFAS 142, goodwill relating to this purchase was not amortized.
On May 24, 2001, we acquired all of the outstanding

On January 12, 2000, we acquired all of the outstanding
shares of TomoSeis Corporation (“TomoSeis”), a privately held
company based in Houston, Texas. TomoSeis provides detailed

shares of PROMORE Engineering Inc. (“PROMORE”), a privately

reservoir imaging services that are a component of timelapse

held company based in Canada. PROMORE provides innovative

(4D) seismic and reservoir monitoring programs. We issued

solutions for production optimization and monitoring of reser-

approximately 232,000 shares and assumed outstanding stock

voir environments with permanent real-time systems. We

options exercisable for approximately 396,000 of our common

issued approximately 606,000 shares in exchange for all

shares. Proceeds from the exercise of these stock options,

of the outstanding shares of PROMORE. The transaction
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when exercised, will be approximately $2.1 million. The trans-

have been restated for all periods prior to the date of acqui-

action was accounted for using the pooling-of-interests method

sition to include the financial position and results of operations

of accounting. Accordingly, our consolidated financial statements

of TomoSeis.

4. INVENTORIES
The components of inventories are as follows (in thousands):
2002
25,954
5,486
3,428
34,868
336
$ 34,532

Finished goods
Parts and materials
Work in progress
Total inventories
Less — valuation reserves
Inventories, net

$

$

$

2001
31,967
6,561
4,428
42,956
1,847
41,109

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
The components of property, plant and equipment are as follows (in thousands):
2002
6,445
38,964
114,076
159,485
64,033
$ 95,452

Land
Building and leasehold improvements
Machinery and equipment
Total property, plant and equipment
Less — accumulated depreciation and amortization
Property, plant and equipment, net

$

2001
6,653
35,261
112,064
153,978
56,363
$ 97,615
$

6. INTANGIBLES
The components of intangibles are as follows (in thousands):

Acquired trade secrets
Acquired patents and trademarks
Acquired trade names
Total intangibles

Original life
in years
5
10-20
40

2002
Gross Carrying Accumulated
Value
Amortization
4,790
898
170
7
6,880
2,022
11,840
2,927

Gross Carrying
Value
4,790
102
4,921
9,813

2001
Accumulated
Amortization
898
4
1,350
2,252

Estimated amortization expense:
December
December
December
December
December

31,
31,
31,
31,
31,

2003
2004
2005
2006
2007

$
$
$
$
$

828
687
589
572
472
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7. GOODWILL
We adopted the transitional disclosures of SFAS 142 effective January 1, 2002 (see Note 2). The changes in the carrying
amount of goodwill for each business segment for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 were as follows (in thousands):

Balance at January 1, 2001
Goodwill acquired during the year
Reclassifications and other
Amortization
Balance at December 31, 2001
Goodwill acquired during the year
Reclassifications and other
Impairment loss
Balance at December 31, 2002

Reservoir
Description
$
78,163
244
(521)
(2,386)
75,500
—
(8,100)
—
$
67,400

Production
Enhancement
$
47,019
6,372
487
(1,286)
52,592
—
8,050
(334)
$
60,308

Reservoir
Management
$ 16,106
—
—
(502)
15,604
5,731
761
(16,358)
$
5,738

Reclassification
and Other
$
41
—
(41)
—
—
—
—
—
$
—

Total
$ 141,329
6,616
(75)
(4,174)
143,696
5,731
711
(16,692)
$ 133,446

Proforma information relating to goodwill amortization is presented in the following tables (in thousands, except
per share data).

Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle
Add back: Goodwill amortization, net of tax
Adjusted net income
Basic earnings per share:
Reported earnings (loss)
Add back: Goodwill amortization, net of tax
Adjusted earnings (loss)
Diluted earnings per share:
Reported earnings (loss)
Add back: Goodwill amortization, net of tax
Adjusted earnings (loss)

2002
7,630
—
$
7,630
$

$
$
$
$

2001
20,632
4,174
$ 24,806
$

0.23
—
0.23

$

0.23
—
0.23

$

$

$

2000
17,830
4,130
$ 21,960
$

0.62
0.13
0.75

$

0.60
0.12
0.72

$

$

$

0.55
0.13
0.68
0.53
0.12
0.65

8. LONG-TERM DEBT AND CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS
Long-term debt is summarized in the following table (in thousands):

Credit Facility $100,000 revolving debt facilities
Senior notes
Capital lease obligations
Other indebtedness
Total debt and capital leases obligations
Less — current maturities
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations, net of current maturities
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2002
13,000
75,000
80
1,100
89,180
1,145
$ 88,035
$

2001
20,000
75,000
84
543
95,627
506
$ 95,121
$

In July 1999, we entered into a $100 million Credit Facility

The terms of the Credit Facility and Senior Notes require

that provides for (i) a committed revolving debt facility of $95

us to meet certain operational and financial covenants, including,

million and (ii) a Euro denominated revolving debt facility with

but not limited to, certain minimum equity and cash flow ratios.

U.S. dollar equivalency of $5 million. At December 31, 2002,

We believe that we are in compliance with all such covenants

approximately $87 million was available for borrowing under

contained in our credit agreements. All of our material wholly

the revolving Credit Facility. The Credit Facility bears interest

owned subsidiaries are guarantors or co-borrowers under

from LIBOR plus 1.25% to a maximum of LIBOR plus 1.75%

both credit agreements.

per annum. The weighted average interest rate was 3.18 %
and 5.32% for the years ended December 31, 2002 and

Scheduled maturities of long-term debt and capital lease
obligations are as follows (in thousands):

2001, respectively. The average interest rate in effect was
2.95% and 3.78% as of December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. The revolving Credit Facility requires interest
payments only, until maturity in June 2004.
In July 1999, we issued $75 million in Senior Notes that
bear an average fixed interest rate of 8.16% and require annual

2003
2004
2005
2006
2007

$

1,145
13,035
7,000
7,000
15,000

2008 and thereafter
Total long-term debt and capital lease obligations

46,000
$ 89,180

principal payments beginning in July 2009 and continuing
through July 2011.

9. INCOME TAXES
The components of operating income before income tax expense and cumulative effect of change in accounting principle for
2002, 2001 and 2000 are as follows (in thousands):

United States
Other countries
Operating income before income tax expense

2002
(5,917)
19,072
$ 13,155
$

$
$

2001
(2,717)
31,373
28,656

2000
(3,546)
29,622
$ 26,076
$

The components of income tax expense (benefit) for 2002, 2001 and 2000 are as follows (in thousands):
2002
Current:
United States
Other countries
State and provincial
Total current
Deferred:
United States
Other countries
State and provincial
Total deferred
Income tax expense

$

$

(255)
6,976
562
7,283
(1,900)
310
(168)
(1,758)
5,525

2001
$

$

—
7,279
762
8,041
115
(52)
(80)
(17)
8,024

2000
$

$

198
9,089
202
9,489
(1,166)
174
(251)
(1,243)
8,246
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The difference between income tax expense computed using The Netherlands statutory income tax rate of 34.5% (35% for
2001 and 2000) and our income tax expense as reported in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations for 2002,
2001 and 2000 are as follows (in thousands):

Tax at The Netherlands income tax rate
International earnings taxed at rates lower than The Netherlands statutory rate
Extraterritorial income exclusion benefit
Goodwill amortization and other non-deductible expenses
Change in valuation allowance
State and provincial taxes
Income tax expense

2002
4,538
(5,635)
(17)
2,898
3,347
394
$
5,525
$

$

$

2001
10,030
(6,879)
(51)
2,880
1,362
682
8,024

2000
9,127
(4,241)
(18)
2,646
781
(49)
$
8,246
$

Deferred tax assets and liabilities result from various temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amount and
their tax basis. Deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 are summarized as follows (in thousands):
2002
Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carryforwards
Accounts receivable
Other
Total deferred tax assets
Valuation allowance
Net deferred tax asset
Deferred tax liabilities:
Intangibles
Inventories
Property, plant and equipment
Other
Total deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred income taxes

At December 31, 2002, we had net operating loss carry-

$

16,579
1,796
1,318
19,693
(7,701)
11,992

(1,408)
(374)
(1,469)
(11,210)
(14,461)
$ (2,469)

2001
$

11,625
1,852
—
13,477
(4,354)
9,123

(1,469)
—
(824)
(11,057)
(13,350)
$ (4,227)

revenues and expenses that may be recognized by the various

forwards for income tax purposes in various tax jurisdictions of

tax jurisdictions in periods that differ from when recognized for

approximately $47.3 million. Of those carryforwards that are

financial reporting purposes.

subject to expiration, they will expire, if unused, over the years
2003 through 2022. We anticipate taxable income in future
years will allow us to fully utilize the carryforwards that have
not had a valuation allowance provided against them. We provide a valuation allowance due to the likelihood of not utilizing
the net operating loss carryforwards in certain foreign tax
jurisdictions. Other deferred tax liabilities are provided for
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10. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION
We have two main stock option plans: the 1995 Long-Term
Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) and the 1995 Nonemployee Director
Stock Option Plan (the “Nonemployee Director Plan”). We also
have assumed stock options outstanding for some of our
acquisitions.

1995 Long-Term Incentive Plan

for our executives which resulted in compensation expense of

The maximum number of shares under the Plan was initially

approximately $472,000. Approximately $1,955,000 will be

limited to 1,300,000 common shares but was amended and

expensed through 2005.

restated effective as of May 1997 and May 2000 to authorize
an additional 4,100,000 common shares for grant to eligible
employees. Options granted pursuant to the Plan are exercisable for a period of 10 years and vest in equal installments
over four years. The exercise price of options granted under
the Plan is the market value at the date of grant. At December
31, 2002, approximately 939,000 shares remain available for
future issuance under this Plan.
In 2002, we instituted an Executive Stock Matching
Program designed to encourage executives to acquire and
retain our stock. The program matches shares purchased
before June 1, 2002 in open market transactions up to a maximum of 50,000 shares, provided the executives meet certain
conditions. The awards will, under normal circumstances, vest
at the end of three years assuming the executives continued
ownership of the underlying shares upon which the grant is
based and certain other conditions including continued employment. For the year ended 2002, we matched 132,852 shares

Options:
Balance as of December 31, 1999
Options granted
Options assumed through acquisitions
Options exercised
Options canceled
Balance as of December 31, 2000
Options granted
Options exercised
Options canceled
Balance as of December 31, 2001
Options granted
Options exercised
Options canceled
Balance as of December 31, 2002

1995 Nonemployee Director Stock Option Plan
The maximum number of shares under the Nonemployee
Director Plan was initially limited to 100,000 common shares
but was amended and restated effective as of May 1997 and
May 2000 to authorize an additional 600,000 common shares
for grant to eligible Supervisory Directors of Core Laboratories.
Pursuant to the Nonemployee Director Plan, beginning in 1996,
10,000 options are granted to each eligible Supervisory Director
and 20,000 are granted to the chairman on an annual basis.
The options are exercisable for a period of 10 years and vest
on the day before the next annual shareholders meeting following
the date of grant. The exercise price of options granted under the
Plan is the market value at the date of grant. At December 31,
2002, approximately 351,000 shares remain available for
future issuance under this Plan.
Information regarding our stock options issued pursuant
to our plans is summarized below:

Shares
2,148,157
763,000
395,541
(305,660)
(186,078)
2,814,960
1,735,000
(290,553)
(241,625)
4,017,782
69,980
(71,339)
(44,764)
3,971,659

Range of Exercise
Prices
$ 0.01 – $ 61.19
19.38 –
28.44
0.01 –
11.97
0.01 –
18.38
6.00 –
61.19
0.01 –
61.19
10.26 –
25.56
0.96 –
20.88
11.25 –
35.99
0.01 –
61.19
9.50 –
12.00
6.00 –
13.06
9.50 –
19.38
$ 0.01 – $61.19

Weighted
Average
Exercise Price
$ 12.54
19.46
5.36
8.41
11.70
13.79
13.34
10.20
15.70
13.63
11.39
8.78
14.71
$ 13.67
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The following is a summary of the range of exercise prices for stock options that are outstanding and exercisable at
December 31, 2002:

Range of Exercise Prices:
$0.01 to $6.12
$6.13 to $12.24
$12.25 to $18.36
$18.37 to $24.48
$24.49 to $30.60
$55.07 to $61.19

Options Outstanding
Weighted
Average
Weighted
Remaining
Average
Life
Exercise
Shares
(Years)
Price
200,383
3.7
$
4.32
1,446,725
7.3
$
9.64
1,280,000
7.5
$ 14.96
1,022,750
6.5
$ 19.19
18,000
8.2
$ 25.63
3,801
5.0
$ 61.19
3,971,659
7.0
$ 13.67

Options Exercisable

Shares
200,383
789,384
556,300
757,750
6,750
3,801
2,314,368

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price
$
4.32
$
9.02
$ 14.08
$ 19.12
$ 25.76
$ 61.19
$ 13.27

11. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL

ence. We believe that the credit risk posed by this industry

INSTRUMENTS

concentration is offset by the creditworthiness of our cus-

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts

tomer base.

receivable and accounts payable approximate fair value due to
the short-term maturities of these instruments. We believe that
the carrying amount of long-term debt, excluding Senior Notes,
approximates fair value, as the majority of these borrowings
bear interest at variable market interest rates. The estimated
fair value of the $75,000,000 Senior Notes was approximately
$84,000,000 at December 31, 2002, determined using longterm rates in effect on that date. These estimates are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that could be realized in a
current market transaction.

13. RETIREMENT AND OTHER PLANS
During 2002, we maintained four defined contribution plans
(the “Plans”) for the benefit of eligible employees in the United
States, Canada and the United Kingdom. One of our acquisitions, PENCOR, maintained defined contribution plans prior to
the date of acquisition. In accordance with the terms of each
plan, we match the required portion of employee contributions
up to specified limits and under certain plans, we may make
discretionary contributions annually in accordance with the
Plans. For the years ended 2002, 2001 and 2000 we

12. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

expensed approximately $2,287,000, $2,866,000 and

We derive our worldwide revenues from customers primarily

$2,079,000 respectively, for our matching and discretionary

in the oil and gas industry. This industry concentration has the

contributions to the Plans.

potential to impact our overall exposure to credit risk, either

We provide a retirement benefit plan to substantially all

positively or negatively, in that our customers could be affected

of our Dutch employees equal to 1.75% of each employee’s

by similar changes in economic, industry or other conditions.

annual pay for each year of service, with indexation of the

Although we have experienced losses on accounts receivable,

amounts for inflation numbers, subject to a maximum of 70%.

our portfolio of accounts receivable is comprised primarily of

Funding for this benefit is in the form of premiums paid to an

major international corporate entities, government organiza-

insurance company based upon each employee’s age and current

tions and independent producers with stable payment experi-

salary. Salary increases require higher premiums, which are
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paid in the year of the salary increase. Employees are 100%
vested at all times. The insurance company has assumed substantially all risk associated with the plan. For the year ended

2002, we expensed premiums of approximately $1,264,000.
The components of net pension (cost) benefit related to the
defined benefit plan are as follows (in thousands):

2002
—
—
102
—
$
102

Service cost-benefits earned during the period
Interest cost on projected obligation
Actual return on assets
Net amortization and accrual
Total pension (cost) benefit

$

2001
$

—
261
(229)
21
53

$

2000
173
527
(817)
(56)
$
(173)
$

Actuarial assumptions used for this calculation are as follows (in thousands):
2002
N/A
N/A
N/A

Discount rate
Rate of return
Rate of compensation increase

We have established deferred compensation contracts

2001
5.32%
N/A
N/A

2000
8.00%
N/A
N/A

amount of approximately $2.6 million under standby letters of

for certain officers. The benefits under these contracts are

credit and bank guarantees. We do not believe it is practicable

fully vested and benefits are paid when the participants attain

to estimate the fair value of these financial instruments and do

65 years of age. The charge to expense for officer deferred

not expect any material losses from their resolution since per-

compensation in 2002, 2001 and 2000 was approximately

formance is not likely to be required.

$561,000, $466,000 and $450,000, respectively. Life insur-

Scheduled minimum rental commitments under non-

ance policies with cash surrender values have been purchased

cancelable operating leases at December 31, 2002, consist

for the purpose of funding the officer deferred compensation

of the following (in thousands):

contracts.

14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
From time to time, we may be subject to legal proceedings
and claims that arise in the ordinary course of business. We
believe that the outcome of current legal actions will not have

2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
Thereafter
Total commitments

$

$

3,339
2,115
1,620
1,164
1,081
7,726
17,045

a material adverse effect upon our financial position or results
of operations.

Operating lease commitments relate principally to equip-

Core Laboratories and its subsidiaries do not maintain any

ment and office space. Rental expense for operating leases,

off-balance sheet debt or other similar financing arrangements

including amounts for short-term leases with nominal future

nor has it formed any special purpose entities for the purpose

rental commitments, was approximately $6,918,000,

of maintaining off-balance sheet debt.

$6,993,000 and $6,629,000 for 2002, 2001 and 2000,

As security for bids and performance on certain contracts,

respectively.

we were contingently liable at December 31, 2002, in the
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15. SEGMENT REPORTING

the Consolidated Balance Sheets and Statements of Operations.

We manage our business segments separately due to the

We evaluate performance based on income or loss from opera-

different services and technologies each segment provides and

tions before income tax, interest and other non-operating

requires (see Note 1). Results of these segments are presented

income (expense). Summarized financial information concerning

below using the same accounting policies as used to prepare

our segments is shown in the following tables (in thousands):

REVENUES:
Reservoir Description
Production Enhancement
Reservoir Management
Intersegment Revenues
Consolidated

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INTEREST AND TAXES:
Reservoir Description1
Production Enhancement1
Reservoir Management1
Corporate and other1,2
Consolidated

2002

Year Ended
2001

2000

$ 273,796
92,514
65,293
(66,855)
$ 364,748

$ 258,991
107,785
65,667
(55,871)
$ 376,572

$ 237,421
94,643
62,084
(53,215)
$ 340,933

2002

Year Ended
2001

2000

$

$

24,952
3,252
(2,660)
(4,786)
20,758

2002
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION:
Reservoir Description
Production Enhancement
Reservoir Management
Corporate and other2
Consolidated

$

$

9,683
3,918
3,480
3,016
20,097

2002
GOODWILL AMORTIZATION:
Reservoir Description
Production Enhancement
Reservoir Management
Consolidated

ASSETS:
Reservoir Description
Production Enhancement
Reservoir Management
Total Business Segments
Corporate and other2
Intersegment Eliminations
Consolidated

$

$

—
—
—
—

$

$

30,728
12,181
(4,530)
(1,802)
36,577

$

$

Year Ended
2001
$

$

10,289
2,908
2,812
2,352
18,361

2000
$

$

Year Ended
2001
$

$

2,383
1,289
502
4,174

23,356
14,370
(3,492)
156
34,390

8,759
1,922
2,542
2,008
15,231

2000
$

$

2,341
1,289
500
4,130

2002

As of December 31,
2001

2000

$ 130,885
85,026
51,330
267,241
137,670
16,242
$ 421,153

$ 135,401
95,620
37,111
268,132
163,323
8,045
$ 439,500

$ 118,313
77,726
40,561
236,600
171,088
5,658
$ 413,346

1) The operating income (loss) before interest and taxes for each segment in 2001 has been reduced by restructuring, write-offs and other charges. The amounts were
allocated as follows: Reservoir Description — $2,549; Production Enhancement — $2,133; Reservoir Management — $2,528 and Corporate and other — $1,515.
2) “Corporate and other” represents those items that are not directly related to a particular segment.
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We are a Netherlands company and we derive our revenues

any of the periods presented. The following is a summary of

from services and product sales to customers primarily in one

our U.S. and non-U.S. operations for 2002, 2001 and 2000

industry segment, the oil and gas industry. No single customer

(in thousands):

accounted for 10 percent or more of consolidated revenues in

Revenues:
United States
Other countries
Total
Operating income before interest and taxes:
United States
Other countries
Total
Identifiable assets:
United States
Other countries
Total

2002

Year Ended
2001

2000

$ 143,061
221,687
$ 364,748

$ 152,768
223,804
$ 376,572

$ 135,780
205,153
$ 340,933

$

$

$

$

1,004
19,754
20,758

$ 114,586
306,567
$ 421,153

$

4,955
31,622
36,577

$ 155,325
284,175
$ 439,500

$

4,394
29,996
34,390

$ 129,766
283,580
$ 413,346

U.S. revenues derived from exports were approximately $21,093,000, $27,155,000, and $45,497,000 in 2002, 2001 and
2000, respectively.

16. WRITE-OFFS AND RESTRUCTURING

employees) and lease termination costs. The remaining accru-

CHARGES

als for facility restoration should be utilized in 2003 and the
lease obligations will be utilized through May 2005. During

Write-offs and Other Charges

2002, we relocated a facility from Mexico City, Mexico to

During the fourth quarter of 2001, we recorded write-offs and

Villahermosa, Mexico. We intend to complete the relocation

other charges of $5.8 million. These charges are comprised

of one of our operations from Dallas to the Houston Advanced

of inventory write-downs of $3.9 million, write-downs of fixed

Technology Center in early 2003. This charge of approximately

assets to their fair value of $0.4 million, and certain costs to

$3.0 million affected each of our operating segments as fol-

migrate data from legacy computer systems to a global infor-

lows: Reservoir Description — $0.8 million; Production

mation system database of $1.5 million.

Enhancement — $0.1 million; and Reservoir Management —
$2.1 million. The amounts incurred in 2002 by segment were:

Restructuring Charges
Also, during the fourth quarter of 2001 we had several transactions that impacted certain operations that were not viewed
as ongoing. We restructured certain operations in Mexico,
the U.K., the U.S. and other countries to improve operating
efficiencies. This restructuring expense included write-offs of
assets and leasehold improvements, and an accrual for facility

Reservoir Description — $0.2 million and Reservoir
Management - $0.9 million. Substantially all employee terminations were completed by the end of the first quarter of 2002.
Total cash required for this restructuring charge of $2.1 million will be funded from operating activities. Cash required for
the costs incurred through December 31, 2002 was $1.6
million. This charge is summarized in the following table:

restoration, severance benefits (for approximately 100 field
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Restructuring Charges
(Dollars in Thousands)

Lease
Obligations
$ 598
38
560
155
$ 405

Total restructuring charges
Less: Costs incurred through December 31, 2001
Accrual remaining at December 31,2001
Less: Costs incurred through December 31, 2002
Accrual remaining at December 31,2002

Severance
$ 951
394
557
557
$
—

Restoration
$ 380
—
380
285
$
95

Asset
Write-offs1
$ 862
862
—
—
$ —

Other
$ 184
40
144
99
$
45

Total
$ 2,975
1,334
1,641
1,096
$ 545

1) The fixed assets and leasehold improvements were disposed of by the end of December 2001. The write-off approximates the carrying amount as these assets
were abandoned or sold for salvage value. Depreciation expense was reduced by approximately $20 in 2001, $82 in 2002 and $281 thereafter. The asset write-offs
of $862 were attributable to the Reservoir Management segment.

17. UNAUDITED SELECTED QUARTERLY

and expenses had been accounted for in an incorrect quarter

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

during 2002 without effect on the entire year. The following

Summarized below is our quarterly financial data for the four

table summarizes the impact and explanation of the adjust-

quarters ended December 31, 2002. In connection with our

ments on our previously reported quarterly results (in thou-

year-end audit, we determined that certain items of revenues

sands, except per share data):

December 31,

September 30,

June 30,

2002 (h)

2002

2002

Three months ended

Previously
$

101,582

$

93,341

2002

Previously

Reported
Service and sales revenues

March 31,

Restated
$

Previously

Reported

92,432

a

$

87,464

Restated
$

86,451 a

Reported
$

85,064

Restated
$

84,283 a

Cost of services and sales

83,849

74,667

74,869

b,c

70,417

71,606 b,c

68,938

70,984 b,c

Other operating expenses

10,711

9,472

10,305

d,e,f

10,095

10,746 d,e,f

9,975

10,920 d,e,f

Operating income

7,022

9,202

7,258

6,952

4,099

6,151

2,379

Interest expense

1,843

1,849

1,857

1,920

1,927

1,968

1,976

Income before income tax expense

5,179

7,353

5,401

5,032

2,172

4,183

403

Income tax expense

2,175

2,059

2,269

1,171

169 g

3,004

5,294

3,132

3,012

234

g

1,409

912 g

Income before cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle

3,623

1,260

Cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle
Net income (loss)

—

—

—

—

—

(16,692)

(16,692)

$

3,004

$

5,294

$

3,132

$

3,623

$

1,260

$

(13,680)

$

(16,458)

$

0.09

$

0.16

$

0.09

$

0.11

$

0.04

$

(0.41)

$

(0.49)

Per share data:
Basic earnings (loss) per share
Weighted average basic common
shares outstanding
Diluted earnings (loss) per share

33,977
$

0.09

33,266
$

0.16

33,266
$

0.09

33,246
$

0.11

33,246
$

0.04

33,210
$

(0.41)

33,210
$

(0.49)

Weighted average diluted common
shares outstanding

33,125

33,465

33,465

33,866

33,866

33,210

33,210

a. Adjusts revenues by $781, $1,013 and $909 in the first, second, and third quarters, respectively, as a result of untimely processing of credit memos.
b. Record additional provision for doubtful accounts of $1,562, $1,127 and $188 in the first, second and third quarters based on the Company’s historical experience.
c. Adjustment for cost of sales of $484, $62 and $14 in the first, second, and third quarters, as a result of reconciliation of account balances primarily in Mexico
and Venezuela.
d. Record adjustment for expense of $173, $172 and $173 in the first, second, and third quarters to correct depreciation expense based on estimated useful life of
related assets and other adjustments.
e. Additional general and administrative expense of $63, $130 and $265 in the first, second and third quarters primarily due to compensation expense.
f. Additional expense of $709, $349 and $395 in the first, second and third quarters for correction of foreign exchange adjustment primarily in Mexico and
Venezuela.
g. Income tax effect of all adjustments above.
h. Includes approximately $400 of expenses for periods prior to 2002.

56

The following table summarizes the impact of these adjustments on our previously reported quarterly financial position
(in thousands):

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data
Cash
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Inventories
Property, plant and equipment, net
Intangibles, goodwill and other assets
Accounts payable
Other current liabilities
Other liabilities

September 30, 2002
Previously
Reported
Restated
$ 14,581
$
14,100
92,187
86,400
13,827
13,088
38,004
37,692
96,132
96,022
150,269
150,147
15,563
15,821
16,218
15,708
22,551
22,556

Retained earnings

83,546

June 30,
Previously
Reported
$ 17,535
88,030
13,380
39,364
97,620
143,737
15,339
16,691
22,195

76,243

78,252

2002
Restated
$ 16,964
83,637
12,841
39,106
97,579
143,608
15,601
15,866
21,969
73,111

March 31, 2002
Previously
Reported
Restated
$ 15,467
$ 15,196
95,913
93,82
12,615
12,293
39,366
39,234
96,305
96,276
146,572
146,408
15,946
15,941
13,890
13,383
29,279
29,564
74,629

71,851

The following table presents the quarterly results for the four quarters ended December 31, 2001 (in thousands, except
per share data):

Three months ended
Service and sales revenues
Cost of services and sales
Other operating expenses
Operating income
Interest expense
Income (loss) before income tax expense
Income tax expense (benefit)
Net income
Per share data:
Basic earnings (loss) per share
Weighted average basic common shares outstanding
Diluted earnings (loss) per share
Weighted average diluted common shares outstanding

December 31,
2001
$
96,869
79,466
18,632
(1,229)
2,000
(3,229)
(904)
$
(2,325)

September 30,
2001
$ 97,097
72,445
10,074
14,578
2,000
12,578
3,522
$
9,056

June 30,
2001
$ 91,260
69,897
8,605
12,758
1,943
10,815
3,028
$
7,787

March 31,
2001
$ 91,346
71,500
9,376
10,470
1,978
8,492
2,378
$
6,114

$

(0.07)
33,199

$

0.27
33,165

$

0.24
33,044

$

0.19
32,885

$

(0.07)
33,926

$

0.27
33,796

$

0.23
34,192

$

0.18
33,958
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